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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting, and Maritime Uses. I'm the Chair,

          5  Council Member Jessica Lappin.  Joined today by

          6  Annabel Palma, Charles Barron, Leroy Comrie, and

          7  Jimmy Oddo.

          8                 And we're going to begin today with a

          9  hearing on the Beekman School, Land Use Item Number

         10  20065349.  It's in Manhattan Community Board One, in

         11  Council Member Gerson's district.  Council Member

         12  Gerson is not with us today, but is in support of

         13  this project.  He and Speaker Silver, I know lobbied

         14  for this school during the budget process.  So we'd

         15  like to hear  --  there are only two witnesses here

         16  to speak to that item today.  Mr. Gregory Shaw, from

         17  SCA, and Kendrick Ou, also from  SCA.

         18                 And we've been joined by Council

         19  Member Sara Gonzalez, of Brooklyn; and Council

         20  Member Arroyo, of the Bronx as well.

         21                 Please gentlemen, just state your

         22  names for the record and begin.

         23                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.  My name is

         24  Gregory Shaw.  I am the Principle Attorney for real

         25  estate matters for the New York City School
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          2  Construction Authority.  And to my right, is

          3  Kendrick Ou, Senior Manager for Site Acquisition for

          4  the New York City School Construction Authority.

          5  Thank you Chairman Lappin, Chairperson Lappin, for

          6  having us today.  And good afternoon, rather good

          7  morning to other Council Members.

          8                 The New York City School Construction

          9  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         10  for the proposed 630- seat primary and intermediate

         11  school that will be located on Tax Block 100 portion

         12  of Lot One, in the area of Lower Manhattan, bounded

         13  by Beekman, Gold, Spruce, and Nassau Streets.  The

         14  proposed school site is also located in the

         15  Department of Education Region Number Nine,

         16  Community School District Number Two, and Manhattan

         17  Community Board Number One.

         18                 The proposed school will be part of a

         19  new, 1,2,400,400 square foot, 75- story tower

         20  containing rental and condominium units, a community

         21  facility, and commercial development, on a 44,532

         22  square foot site in Lower Manhattan.  The School

         23  Construction Authority will acquire a condominium

         24  interest from the developer of the site for

         25  approximately a 100,000 square feet of space for
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          2  school purposes, to locate the 630- seat primary and

          3  intermediate school on the first five floors of the

          4  building.           The Notice of Filing for the

          5  site plan was published in the New York Post and

          6  City Record on April 22, 2005.  Manhattan Community

          7  Board Number One was also notified of the site plan

          8  on April 22, 2005.  Community Board Number One held

          9  a hearing on the proposed site plan on May 24, 2005.

         10    And subsequently submitted written comments in

         11  support of the project.  The City Planning

         12  Commission was also notified on that date, April

         13  22nd, and it also recommended in favor  --

         14  recommended in favor of the site.

         15                 The SCA has considered all comments

         16  received on the proposed site  plan, and affirms the

         17  site plan pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

         18  Authorities Law.  In accordance with Section 1732 of

         19  the Public Authorities Law, the SCA submitted the

         20  proposed site plan to the Mayor and Council on June

         21  14, 2006.

         22                 We look forward to your

         23  Subcommittee's favorable consideration of this

         24  proposed site plan.  We are prepared now to answer

         25  any questions that you may have.  Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  I was

          4  hoping Council Member Gerson would be able to join

          5  us this morning.  I know that he had a few concerns

          6  that were raised, I think much earlier on in the

          7  process.  But I wish I had a list.  I don't.  But I

          8  was hoping that you could speak to those concerns,

          9  and I'm assuming that they have been addressed.

         10                 MR. SHAW: All the concerns of  --  as

         11  far as I know, have been addressed and throughout

         12  our process.  Any questions that they had, any

         13  concerns that any of the Council Members or

         14  Congressmen had, as well as the community.  And

         15  that's why they voted in favor for this site.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Do any of

         17  my colleagues have questions?  Council Member

         18  Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did I say you

         20  say first five floors?

         21                 MR. SHAW: Yes.  Approximately the

         22  first five floors of the 75- story tower.  Ground

         23  floor up.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the rest

         25  of the building is going to be --
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          2                 MR. SHAW: Yes.  The rest of the

          3  building will be rental, condominium, the New York

          4  University Beekman Hospital also will have

          5  Ambulatory Care Unit in the building.  And there

          6  will be some potentially some other commercial

          7  development.  But primarily, it is rental and

          8  condominium units.  There's also going to be an

          9  underground garage.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Will there be

         11  an opportunity for expansion if need be?

         12                 MR. SHAW: That I'm not aware of.

         13  Given the size of the lot, and the design of the

         14  building, I would doubt it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And where will

         16  they have recreation space?

         17                 MR. SHAW: Recreation space for the

         18  school is off of I believe the fourth floor.  It

         19  will be an open- air jutting out from the building.

         20  But there will be recreational space.  And there's

         21  also, of course, an interior gymnasium.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And will you

         23  have a fill- size cafeteria that can  --

         24                 MR. SHAW: Absolutely.  Yes.  The

         25  school will be all standard Board of  --  The
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          2  Department of Education requirements for a primary

          3  and intermediate school.  There will be no  --  the

          4  same accommodations that you would get in any

          5  primary and intermediate school of this size, 630-

          6  seat, will be accommodated in this structure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you said

          8  how many stories is this building?

          9                 MR. SHAW: The total stories is 75.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So it's an

         11  existing building?

         12                 MR. SHAW: No, it's not.  This is a

         13  brand new construction --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It's a vacant

         15  lot.

         16                 MR. SHAW: Yes, it's a vacant lot.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It's a vacant

         18  lot right across from the hospital.  I'm aware of

         19  it.

         20                 MR. SHAW: It will be constructed by

         21  one of the Forrest City Ratner companies.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: RC Ratner.  Oh

         23  Oh.

         24                 MR. SHAW: I probably shouldn't have

         25  said that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So just the

          3  out year projection for this area, I'm just

          4  concerned that we're not maybe leaving two floors

          5  vacant for further expansion.  Since  --

          6                 MR. SHAW: Oh, you mean of the school.

          7    That's not possible.  I mean, the developer is the

          8  one that will construct  -- beside the building  --

          9  is also constructing the school.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         11                 MR. SHAW: So the --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But the school

         13    --  the rental properties are going to be on top

         14  of the building.

         15                 MR. SHAW: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  But

         17  don't we expect this Downtown area to like triple in

         18  population in the next 20 years?

         19                 MR. SHAW: Well we'll have to  --

         20  then I guess I'll have to decide  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Every vacant

         22  site that I'm looking at is condo conversion or new

         23  condos, or everything on the West Side Highway just

         24  north of site zero, the Ground Zero.  It seems at

         25  least seven new constructions just in that area, in
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          2  just on this side, I've noticed about ten buildings

          3  in either rehab or redevelopment.  And is this going

          4  to be enough to meet the needs for this area?

          5                 MR. SHAW: I know that the School

          6  Construction Authority is looking at other sites,

          7  Council Member Combrie (sic).

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  If they

          9  voted for it, I guess I'll leave it alone.  I think

         10  that they should have put in two extra floors for

         11  redundancy for later on though.  But I guess they'll

         12  do what they have to do.  No further questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any other

         14  questions?  This is a new facility, this is not

         15  replacing an existing facility.

         16                 MR. SHAW: This is brand new, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: All right.  And

         18  is there any affordable housing?  Or is this the

         19  community benefit?

         20                 MR. SHAW: I'm not sure.  I would

         21  assume, given you know, the approval process that

         22  they had to go through, that it would be some  --

         23  that there would have to be some affordable housing

         24  or some community benefit.  But that's not part of

         25  this presentation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Seeing no

          3  other questions, we'll close this hearing.  Thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 MR. SHAW: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

          7  coming.  And we're going to vote only on this item.

          8  So if Counsel could please call the roll.

          9                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair Lappin.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I recommend a

         11  favorable vote. And I vote aye.

         12                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

         13  Barron.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

         15                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

         16  Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         18                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

         19  Palma.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         21                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

         22  Arroyo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         24                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

         25  Mendez.

                                                            14

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

          3                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council Member

          4  Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

          6                 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Vote stands at

          7  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

          8  no abstentions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We're going to

         10  hold the vote open for the duration of the meeting.

         11  And we're going to now open the hearing on Land Use

         12  Item 20065414, South Brooklyn Marine  -- actually,

         13  I'm sorry.  Land Use Number 180, South Brooklyn

         14  Marine Terminal.  It's in Brooklyn Community Board

         15  Seven, in Council Member Gonzalez's district.  And

         16  we're going to hear first from  -- does EDC want to

         17  come up with the applicant?  Is EDC testifying, I'm

         18  assuming.  Okay.  Why don't we start with Axis, with

         19  Robert Fleming, and John Harrington, from Axis?

         20  Okay.  Nobody from EDC signed up to testify.  So  --

         21    that's okay.   But please, if you'd like to

         22  testify first, you can fill out  --  after you're

         23  done, we'll just fill out slips please with the

         24  Sergeant.  And introduce yourself for the record,

         25  and   --
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          2                 MR. GENN: I have a faulty laser

          3  pointer, so  --  it's sort of working.  Okay.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Maybe we can dim

          6  the lights a little bit.  Nick.  Are you  --

          7                 MR. GENN: Good morning.  My name is

          8  Andrew Genn.  I am a Vice President at the New York

          9  City Economic Development Corporation.  And I'm

         10  joined by --

         11                 MR. MCDONALD: John Mc Donald.  I'm

         12  the Senior Vice President of the Economic

         13  Development Corporation.

         14                 MR. GENN: Good morning Chair Lappin,

         15  and Members of the Committee.  The Subcommittee.  My

         16  name is Andrew Genn.  I am a Vice President for Port

         17  Planning at the New York City Economic Development

         18  Corporation.  The EDC is designated by the City of

         19  New York to promote economic activity, and is the

         20  City's lead entity for maritime policy and

         21  implementation.

         22                 Since joining EDC nine years ago, I

         23  have been directly involved in most of the City's

         24  efforts to promote and develop the City's maritime

         25  infrastructure assets.  My first assignment at EDC
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          2  was to mange the 1999 strategic plan for the

          3  redevelopment of the Port of New York, an initiative

          4  which resulted in the lease we are to present to you

          5  today.  During that time, I also have served as the

          6  City's representative to the Army Corps of Engineers

          7  Harbor Navigation Study, which led to the federal

          8  authorization to deepen the main shipping channels

          9  in New York Harbor to 50 feet.  I am currently the

         10  City's representative on the Army Corps' Senior

         11  Partnering Committee, which consists of the Port

         12  Authority, the states of New York and New Jersey,

         13  the U.S. EPA, and the Coast Guard.  This group

         14  coordinates interagency policy development related

         15  to port planning and navigation, and jointly

         16  developed the Comprehensive Port Improvement Plan,

         17  or CPIP, completed in 2005.  In addition, I sit on

         18  the Steering Committee of the Harbor Operations

         19  Committee, which monitors the daily operations

         20  within New York Harbor.

         21                 I thank you for this opportunity to

         22  testify on the proposed maritime lease between the

         23  City of New York and the Axis Group at the South

         24  Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  The proposed lease

         25  closely follows the recommendations of the 1999
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          2  Strategic Port Plan, and will realize the economic

          3  development and environmental goals set forth in

          4  that plan.  Most importantly, the lease will not

          5  preclude further maritime development in Sunset

          6  Park, including a future container port.

          7                 The Axis Group, an Atlanta, Georgia-

          8  based company, is one of the United States' primary

          9  logistics provider to domestic and foreign

         10  automobile manufacturers.  This lease is for a 74-

         11  acre portion of the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal

         12  in Sunset Park, Brooklyn.  Under Charter Section

         13  1301, the Council's approval is required to

         14  authorize the Commissioner of the Department of

         15  Small Business Services to execute the lease.

         16                 The genesis of this lease was the

         17  1999 Strategic Port Plan.  The Strategic Plan has

         18  served as a blueprint for developments of the City's

         19  maritime terminals in Brooklyn and Staten Island.

         20  The plan recognized that the City's port facilities

         21  in Brooklyn and Staten Island play a critical role

         22  in the region's maritime freight system, and would

         23  develop dynamically over time in recognition of

         24  market forces and public policy initiatives.

         25                 Community involvement was a key
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          2  element of the Strategic Port Plan, and it

          3  particularly informed and enhanced the ultimate

          4  recommendations for the Sunset Park waterfront.

          5  Community organizations, including Community Board

          6  Seven, during the tenure of Council Member Sara

          7  Gonzalez, the Office of the Brooklyn Borough

          8  President, the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce, Local

          9  1814 of the International Longshoremen's

         10  Association, the United Puerto Rican Organization of

         11  Sunset Park, Center for Family Life, Fifth Avenue

         12  Committee, Southwest Brooklyn IDC, and many others

         13  were integral to the final plan and subsequent work

         14  on the Axis development.  Since the plan was

         15  adopted, EDC and Axis have met repeatedly with these

         16  organizations in Sunset Park to ensure that the

         17  final project meets the expectations of all.

         18                 The Strategic Plan recommended three

         19  separate, but complementary development programs at

         20  SBMT, and the entire Sunset Park waterfront.  The

         21  first program, which you can see up there, and what

         22  I'm pointing to is the South Brooklyn Marine

         23  Terminal, was a combination automobile, general

         24  cargo marine terminal at SBMT. Essentially, the

         25  proposal that Axis has committed to implement. The
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          2  Strategic Plan concluded that autos and break bulk

          3  were the best commodities in the short term, to

          4  attract to SBMT for the following reasons:

          5                 One, minimal capital investment; Two,

          6  highest number of direct union jobs; Three, ability

          7  to coexist with other maritime uses, including break

          8  bulk; and an auto terminal supports conversion in

          9  the future to container use.

         10                 It should be noted that the first

         11  program also recommended development of a major

         12  public open space at Bush Terminal,   --  over here,

         13  the Bush Terminal Park  --  an initiative which is

         14  proceeding into implementation, as announced by

         15  Mayor Bloomberg and Governor Pataki in April of this

         16  year.

         17                 The second program was a modest

         18  expansion of SBMT through landfill, to expand the

         19  area available for auto port storage.  That's the

         20  slide you see there.  A small landfill in this area.

         21                 The third program was the phases

         22  development of two 150- acre container terminals.

         23  Development of the first terminal, container

         24  terminal, was contingent on the construction of a

         25  cross harbor rail freight tunnel.  And that's noted
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          2  over here, in this slide.  The first terminal, known

          3  as the South Terminal, would require the filling of

          4  approximately 100 acres of water area adjacent to

          5  the Brooklyn Army Terminal from the 65th Street Rail

          6  Yard, over here, up to 51st Street at Bush Terminal.

          7                 Now the logic of locating the initial

          8  container terminal in this area was its proximity to

          9  the open ocean  --  the Varranzano is down over here

         10    --  and its proximity to the rail freight system

         11  that would be newly reactivated through the cross

         12  harbor tunnel.

         13                 The final phase of the container

         14  program  --  next slide  --  was a gradual

         15  conversion of the auto terminal at SBMT into a

         16  container terminal in response to market demand.  At

         17  the time the study was released, the final phase was

         18  project to occur around 2020.  At that time, it was

         19  estimated that a rail tunnel would be constructed by

         20  2010.  And the next slide shows full conversion to

         21  containers in the year 2020.  Under the plan.

         22                 Acting on these recommendations, in

         23  November of 2000, EDC issued a Request for Proposals

         24  for redevelopment of SBMT. EDC received several

         25  responses, and in December of 2001, the City
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          2  conditionally designated the Axis Group as the

          3  preferred developer of the facility.  Axis'

          4  submission best satisfied the evaluation criteria

          5  for job creation, financial offer, and integration

          6  with the community.

          7                 Axis' proposal will generate 300

          8  full- time unionized jobs in five years, including

          9  stevedoring, automobile processing, transportation,

         10  management, and security.  Another 75 jobs will be

         11  supported during the construction period.  Axis'

         12  rent, throughput, and PILOT payments will net the

         13  City an average of nearly $7 million a year for the

         14  next 20 years.  At a ground rent that is comparable

         15  to Port Authority auto- marine facilities in New

         16  Jersey.

         17                 The total net value of rent payments

         18  is $150 million, or $63 million in present value

         19  dollars.

         20                 Because the Axis lease generates

         21  revenue, it will be able to provide operation and

         22  maintenance funds to support Bush Terminal Park  --

         23     next slide  --  with up to three percent of lease

         24  revenues, less the PILOT, available to be redirected

         25  by the City to maintenance of the park.
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          2                 In keeping with the community's

          3  desire to make SBMT into a greenport, Axis is

          4  committed to using zero emission vehicles,

          5  completely scrubbed emissions from its paint booth,

          6  employ grey water vehicle wash systems, and

          7  implement a cross harbor barge service to reduce

          8  trucking.  EDC has committed to filtering 100

          9  percent of stormwater flows and will provide an 18

         10  foot setback along the perimeter of SBMT to

         11  accommodate a future greenway.

         12                 Let me briefly summarize the terms of

         13  the lease. Since this is a maritime lease, there are

         14  certain provisions that EDC put in the lease to

         15  ensure that Axis fully utilizes SBMT for maritime

         16  use and maritime use only.  Failure to meet any of

         17  these non- performance measurements could lead to

         18  termination of the lease.

         19                 The first is minimum vessel calls,

         20  which commence one EDC completes facility

         21  improvements, according to a schedule that begins at

         22  90 vessel calls per year, increasing to 220 vessel

         23  calls after the 12th year.

         24                 The second is based on the actual

         25  number of vehicles that Axis moves through the
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          2  facility.  During the lease term, if Axis fails to

          3  meet 60 percent of its minimum guaranteed vehicle

          4  throughput amount over a two- year period, the City

          5  can terminate the lease.

          6                 Use of the facility is limited to a

          7  port of entry for finished vehicles, processing, and

          8  export of off lease vehicles generated in New York

          9  City, and stevedoring of break bulk cargos. The City

         10  remains in control of the facility, and can enforce

         11  lease provisions at any time, and can terminate the

         12  lease if Axis does not perform.  The term of the

         13  lease is based on the Port Authority's model for

         14  marine terminals in the Port of New York and New

         15  Jersey.  It's consistent with the maritime lease

         16  approved by the City Council last year for Lafarge

         17  Building Materials, at the 25th Street pier, just

         18  north of SBMT, and provides the necessary cash flow

         19  to the City and Axis to recover capital investments.

         20                 The lease also contains several

         21  incentives to Axis to promote maritime

         22  transportation and reduce trucking.  The lease

         23  contains a credit for vehicles that are brought to

         24  the facility by water.  Once the volume of vehicles

         25  brought to the site by ship or barge exceeds 50,000
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          2  units, Axis is entitled to a credit of $30 per

          3  vehicle, and $40 if the number of vehicles brought

          4  to SBMT by water, exceeds 73,500.  Throughout the

          5  term of the lease, Axis, through its stevedore, will

          6  handle break bulk cargoes at the 39th Street pier.

          7  Break bulk cargoes consist mostly of construction

          8  materials, such as plywood, lumber, steel coil,

          9  wallboard, and are locally demanded, and would

         10  otherwise be trucked into the City.

         11                 Another incentive relates to dockage

         12  and wharfage fees.  Axis may keep dockage and

         13  wharfage fees during the first five years as an

         14  incentive for break bulk vessels.  After the fifth

         15  year, Axis may keep half of the dockage and wharfage

         16  fees for non auto vessels.  The break bulk vessels.

         17  In addition, as car volumes increase, and therefore,

         18  the number of jobs, Axis may keep dockage and

         19  wharfage fees according to a sliding scale.

         20                 Both Axis and EDC are committed to

         21  improving the physical condition of SBMT, which as

         22  experienced years of deferred maintenance.  Next

         23  slide.  To preserve the current  --  the facility

         24  for current and future use, EDC will invest $24

         25  million in capital improvements, including berth

                                                            25

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  deepening, utility renovation, paving, lighting,

          3  stormwater controls, and security fencing.

          4                 Axis will be obligated to initially

          5  invest $12 million on trade fixtures and facility

          6  upgrades.  In addition, Axis will inherit the

          7  maintenance obligations for all above- ground

          8  structures.  And they are expected to spend $31

          9  million over the term of the lease, to maintain SBMT

         10  in the state of good repair.

         11                 In sum, the Axis lease at SBMT will

         12  achieve several important policy goals for the City.

         13    It will reactivate an underutilized maritime

         14  facility in a way that preserves the site for future

         15  uses in conformity with the 1999 Port Plan.  It will

         16  diversify the City's employment base by creating 300

         17  high- paying unionized jobs.  It will provide $90

         18  million in net revenues to the City's coffers.  It

         19  will assist the maintenance of a new public

         20  waterfront park.  And will achieve all of these

         21  benefits with little or no risk to the City.  If

         22  Axis fails to meet these lease goals.

         23                 And finally, it fulfills a pledge

         24  that EDC made to the Sunset Park community several

         25  years ago.  That port redevelopment can unlock the
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          2  potential of its most valuable asset, the

          3  waterfront, in a manner that balances local economic

          4  development with public waterfront access.

          5                 Therefore, we ask the Council to

          6  approve this lease so that the Commissioner of the

          7  Department of Small Business Services can execute

          8  it.  And I'm happy to answer any questions. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         11  Gonzalez, would you like to ask any questions, make

         12  a statement?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good

         14  morning.  It is still morning, right?  First of all,

         15  I just want to say thank you Chair, for this

         16  opportunity, and to all my colleagues here today.

         17                 I really do not want to make a full

         18  statement today, but I do want to say, that whole-

         19  heartedly, I support this project. The only thing

         20  is, that I have a concern for the lease and for the

         21  terms of the lease.  And that's something that we

         22  will continue to speak about.  And hopefully, we

         23  still have a little more time.  But I do want to say

         24  that having been Chair of Community Board, Community

         25  Board Seven, this is a vision that's coming through,

                                                            27

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  just like our high school.

          3                 And I remember that we spoke about

          4  economic development.  We spoke about revitalization

          5  of the waterfront.  And we spoke about the job

          6  creation.  So  --  and also, the community board

          7  today is here, and they also support this project.

          8  But again, on my part, it's a good project.  They've

          9  been very forthcoming.  There have been many, many

         10  questions, which I'm sure EDC can say, and also

         11  Axis, that I have asked, even in respect to are

         12  there any chemicals, is it environmentally safe?  Is

         13  it  -- the trucks.  Everything was a concern,

         14  because we worked on a lot of projects in our

         15  district, and we certainly want to make the best

         16  decision for the district as well as for the City of

         17  New York.

         18                 So today, I have not made a decision.

         19    But I favor this project, and I will continue to

         20  be thoughtful, as I hope that everyone in this

         21  project will be.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  I

         23  have a few questions.  And I want to start by saying

         24  I think we share the same goal of maintaining a

         25  working waterfront.  And the importance that is in
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          2  terms of our overall economic development.  Or at

          3  least I do. I don't want to speak for the other

          4  people who are here today.

          5                 But you had mentioned Mr. Genn, that

          6  you were involved with the development of the

          7  original 1999 plan.

          8                 MR. GENN: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And it's my

         10  understanding that the original 1999 plan did

         11  incorporate this kind of a facility, but for a 10-

         12  year period.  As opposed to what this is.  This is a

         13  20 year with two options for five years.  Is that

         14  correct?

         15                 MR. GENN: Correct.  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So it's basically

         17  a 30- year lease.  Is that correct?  Did the

         18  original plan envision something like this for 10

         19  years?

         20                 MR. GENN: No.  It's not correct.  It

         21  originally  -- with all due respect  --  it was a

         22  project that was supposed to last 20 years, under

         23  the original plan.  That would, as I showed in the

         24  phase three, there would be a gradual conversion of

         25  the North Container Terminal, the second container
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          2  terminal, from autos to the containers at around the

          3  year 2020.  Beginning at  --  our zero year was 2000

          4  at that time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So you're stating

          6  today that you think that 20 years then, would be

          7  consistent with the original plan?

          8                 MR. GENN: In the year 2000 yes.  But

          9  subsequent to the 1999 Port Plan, the Comprehensive

         10  Port Improvement Plan, which I was also involved in,

         11  which was released last year, stated that the

         12  regional port facilities, container port facilities,

         13  had the available capacity through the year 2037.

         14  So  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: All right, but

         16  that's not what I'm talking about.  I'm talking

         17  about the original 1999 plan, which you were

         18  involved with.  So even if the starting year was

         19  2000, if you're talking about 2020, that would still

         20  be 20 years.  You're saying it wasn't ten, although

         21  other people may come and testify that it was ten,

         22  you're saying that it was 20.  But 20 is still not

         23  30.

         24                 MR. GENN: It was 20, and if you go

         25  into the text of the plan, you'll see that it was
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          2  also hedged a bit, where we said if it  --  market

          3  forces led us to convert from autos to containers,

          4  you could do that.  Because the autos are readily

          5  convertible.  But if the demands or the capacity of

          6  the ports was meeting the demands, you wouldn't need

          7  to make that conversion until a later time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.  I mean,

          9  this was a piece of an overall plan, and that's what

         10  Council Member Gonzalez was talking about, an

         11  overall vision.  For redeveloping the waterfront.

         12  And that's what the community board was supportive

         13  of, and that's what Council Member Gonzalez is

         14  supportive of.

         15                 So where is the Administration moving

         16  towards?  In terms of the overall vision that was

         17  laid out in that plan? Because this was just one

         18  piece.

         19                 Please, if you could just introduce

         20  yourself for the record.

         21                 MS. MCDONALD: Sure. I'm Joan

         22  McDonald.  I'm the Senior Vice President at EDC,

         23  heading up the Transportation group. The

         24  Administration is extremely committed to maintaining

         25  maritime industrial use on the Brooklyn waterfront.

                                                            31

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  I think that is apparent in the lease that came

          3  before the Council last year, which was Lafarge

          4  Cement, as Andrew said in his testimony.  It is you

          5  know, a 30- year  --  it is a 25/5, identical to

          6  this one.  This is the next phase.  I think what we

          7  prove here today is that over the last several

          8  years, there has been disinvestment.  We've had many

          9  conversations.  And I personally have had many

         10  conversation with Congressman Nadler to make sure

         11  that the waterfront is revitalized.  We do want to

         12  make sure that whatever we do here compliments

         13  future plans, and that's why we think you know,

         14  everything is in phases, and that this is the

         15  optimal use of this space, at this time, for 20

         16  years, plus two five- year extenders.  We feel we

         17  have strong safeguards in that, with the performance

         18  measures that the City can terminate the lease if

         19  the throughput is not realized.  And then hopefully,

         20  the container port will be built, starting to the

         21  south.  The demand will be there.  And 25 years and

         22  out, we'll be building the northern part of the

         23  container port.

         24                 So we are fully committed to the

         25  Brooklyn waterfront.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And to moving

          3  toward the container port.

          4                 MS. MCDONALD: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Now I

          6  think the issue is, what may be an optimal use now,

          7  may not be an optimal use in 30 years.

          8                 MS. MCDONALD: That may well be.  And

          9  that's why you know, as the '99 plan said, and it

         10  was then reinforced in the Comprehensive Port

         11  Improvement Plan, doing a combination auto

         12  processing, break bulk facility, and making the

         13  capital investments that we're making, the piers

         14  will be ready.  But 15 years from now, we start to

         15  look at what the demand is 10 years out, we can you

         16  know, we can at 20 years, not renew the lease.  So

         17  those are all options that are all out there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And what is EDC

         19  doing to proactively move forward the vision of

         20  having a container port in the South Brooklyn

         21  waterfront?

         22                 MR. GENN: Well I would just say that

         23  this is an important place holder for that goal.

         24  That because of the real estate pressures, having an

         25  active maritime use at SBMT is really important for
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          2  the Brooklyn waterfront and Sunset Park.

          3                 I would say, at the same time, you

          4  know, the '99 plan also looked at the facilities in

          5  Staten Island, and we've been working with the Port

          6  Authority on the expansion of the Howland Hook

          7  Marine Terminal.  I would also add that you know, we

          8  fully envision that you know, if a cross- harbor

          9  tunnel is realized, that you have a large facility,

         10  or the availability of land for a large facility

         11  near the Brooklyn Army Terminal, which would be the

         12  equivalent of the Howland Hook Marine Terminal on

         13  Staten Island today.  A fully functioning for deep

         14  draft vessels.  And that would you know, last you

         15  know, quite a long time.  In terms of meeting

         16  container demand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I want to ask you

         18  about the money piece.  And then I know some of my

         19  colleagues have questions, and I may come back.  But

         20  I want to give them an opportunity to ask as well.

         21                 You said that EDC was investing $24

         22  million, and Axis was investing $12 (million).  The

         23  City has been derelict in its duty to maintain this

         24  site.  Is that correct?  I mean, that's what you

         25  basically said when you testified.  So  --
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          2                 MS. MCDONALD: We said we disinvested.

          3    We hate using the word "derelict".  You know, a

          4  couple of  --  about a month ago, I testified, along

          5  with one of my colleagues in Asset Management,

          6  before the Waterfront Committee on the City's plans

          7  to making sure that our waterfront investment is

          8  done correctly, and right now, the City, EDC, Parks,

          9  DCAS, is undertaking a Citywide survey of all the

         10  various waterfront properties, so that we can then

         11  take that survey and develop a plan to make sure

         12  that there is  --  that the appropriate investments

         13  are made.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Now I guess  --

         15  I just wouldn't want this to be construed as, this

         16  is $24 million that is only being done in the

         17  context of this project.  Although maybe that's

         18  what's precipitating the work.  This is work that

         19  the City should have been doing at some point in

         20  time, but hasn't done?

         21                 MR. GENN: Well, let me just answer

         22  that question by saying, between 2002 and 2004, the

         23  City put in $21 million to rehabilitate the sea wall

         24  at SBMT, and that included reactivating or

         25  rebuilding completely, the 39th Street pier.  And
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          2  that allows -  that's the essential element that

          3  allows this project to continue.

          4                 But these waterfront facilities cost

          5  a lot of money to maintain.  So we put in the

          6  initial 21.  It was really an emergency condition at

          7  the time.  But the work was done, and it  --  And

          8  the $24 million is really just to fit out, so that

          9  the facility is equivalent to other facilities that

         10  the Port Authority runs in New Jersey.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.  No, and

         12  we have a sea wall at Roosevelt Island, which is in

         13  my district, and it requires a lot.  Right.

         14                 But I guess I just wanted to

         15  distinguish for a moment.  Because to say that $24

         16  million is being done  --  or even that that $20

         17  million that was done for the sea wall, wasn't done

         18  for Axis.

         19                 MS. MCDONALD: The $21 million was

         20  invested to maintain a state of good repair, so that

         21  the facility did not further deteriorate.  The $24

         22  million probably breaks down into discrete pieces.

         23  We don't have the numbers in front of us.  Some of

         24  them are directly tied to the Axis project.  Some

         25  are probably part of an ongoing maintenance.  And
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          2  we'll be happy to get kind of that break out to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think that's

          4  important. Because an emergency condition, the sea

          5  wall is falling into the water, is not an investment

          6  that the City is making for this project.  It's an

          7  investment that the City is making into the City.

          8  Because we're in an emergency situation.  And so I

          9  think to throw out a number, which is a significant

         10  number, and say that's  -- and sort of tie it to

         11  this project, I think it is an important thing to

         12  distinguish.  What's being spent  --

         13                 MS. MCDONALD: That's the distinction

         14  between the 21 and the 24.  The majority of the 24

         15   --  the $21 million was spent. And that was to deal

         16  with the disrepair, the marine boards that eat away,

         17  the columns that support the piers.  You know, we

         18  have divers out all the time to make sure that we

         19  are addressing those situations.  And that program

         20  we do on an ongoing basis.  And yes, we do that

         21  based on the list of all the waterfront properties

         22  that EDC does own.

         23                 The $24 million is largely due to

         24  Axis.  What of that we would do separate and apart,

         25  we can get that break down to you.  But it is
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          2  largely  --  The $21 million was invested to keep

          3  the facility in state of good repair.  The $24

          4  million is primarily tied to the Axis lease.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Well I'd

          6  like to see the $24 million.

          7                 MS. MCDONALD: We can absolutely get

          8  that to you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I have some

         10  more questions, but I want to move to my colleagues.

         11  Council Member Barron.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just wanted

         13  to get back real quickly to the lease agreement. If

         14  there were some changes in this proposal and it went

         15  to a 10-year lease with a five-year option, how

         16  would that impact the project?

         17                 MS. McDONALD: We would have to run

         18  the numbers and see what it would do to the net

         19  present values, see what it would do to -- you know,

         20  you make capital investments, you know, primarily

         21  you make capital investments over a 30-year term.

         22  You like to at least, if you're investing capital

         23  money, and I don't know if any of my OMB colleagues

         24  are here, but traditionally you like to tie a

         25  capital investment to minimally a 30-year useful
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          2  life of a facility. So, that's kind of the starting

          3  point of making capital investments. So, we'd have

          4  to go back and take a look at the numbers. It would

          5  clearly have an impact in the total revenue that

          6  comes to the City. We're very pleased with the fact

          7  that a portion of the revenue is going to fund park

          8  maintenance, and we'd have to see how it would

          9  affect that. And then, you know, last, and that all

         10  kicks in, a big piece of those kicks in in Year '12

         11  to '20, so that's when the real benefits start to

         12  accrue, the capital investments are happening over

         13  years one to seven.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But even the

         15  revenue part, I notice that it would be minus the

         16  Payment In Lieu of Taxes, minus the PILOT money.

         17                 MR. GENN: For the open space, project

         18  for the park?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

         20                 MR. GENN: Yes. Because we don't --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: By the time

         22  you take out, that will be a very small -- the

         23  percentage actually gets real timely when you don't

         24  include the PILOTs.

         25                 MR. GENN: It's a pretty rich lease
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          2  even without the PILOT and we're looking at by Year

          3  '12, '12, '13, '14 to bring in almost $200,000 a

          4  year for park maintenance.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, with the

          6  three percent minus the PILOT --

          7                 MR. GENN: Yes. And Axis would be just

          8  one of -- there would be other lessees in the area,

          9  new lessees on the waterfront who will also be

         10  contributing to the park.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Mm-hmm.

         12                 MR. GENN: At the same time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Just, I mean,

         15  these are separate policy questions. I'm not going

         16  to go too far down this road. But do we only build

         17  parks in this City now with private entities funding

         18  them?

         19                 MS. McDONALD: No. Not at all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We've been joined

         21  by the Chair of the Land Use Committee Council

         22  Member Katz.

         23                 Would you like to ask any questions.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I apologize for

         25  being late. I didnt hear your initial testimony. I'm
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          2  trying to catch up quick, and I appreciate the

          3  discretion of the Chair for allowing me to talk.

          4                 I have two very quick questions, just

          5  because I don't know if you touched upon it.

          6                 The dredging that has to be done. Is

          7  that dredging that would have to be done anyway no

          8  matter what goes here? Or is it something that's

          9  sort of needs to accommodate this particular tenant?

         10                 MR. GENN: Well, it depends on the

         11  vessel. Since the auto vessels that Axis would be

         12  bringing in draft at about 35 feet, we need to

         13  deepen the berth to accommodate those types of

         14  vessels. But it will also be perfectly adequate for

         15  break bulk vessels as well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So for the

         17  maritime uses, dredging this property really would

         18  probably be a necessity.

         19                 MR. GENN: Number one.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you just

         21  describe, I know there are three items in the

         22  strategic plan, can you just describe for me the

         23  break bulk operation, how long it will last, will it

         24  continue after the five or seven years when you're

         25  going to start the other operation? How will the
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          2  revenue be generated? You know, that type of stuff.

          3                 MR. GENN: Yes. The break bulk

          4  operations we anticipate will continue through the

          5  full term of the lease. We'll be getting revenues

          6  from a combination of base rent, for unimproved land

          7  and for buildings. Then we have pilot payments, we

          8  have dockage and workage fees, and we also have

          9  through-put fees, just a number of vehicles of units

         10  that pass through the facility.

         11                 MS. McDONALD: And Council Member

         12  Katz, we basically use the Port Elizabeth Port

         13  Jersey model to do our lease. What the Port

         14  Authority does with the Port Elizabeth and Port

         15  Newark because even know we are the Port of New York

         16  and Port of New Jersey, we feel that a lot of the

         17  port activity has been happening on the New Jersey

         18  side, so to be competitive and attract the type of

         19  maritime uses that we want, you know, we look at New

         20  Jersey and at how we structured their leases, which

         21  is what we used as kind of our base model.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         23                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

         25                 I think Council Member Barron has a
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          2  follow-up question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes. Yes. I

          4  just wanted to ask you something about the 300 jobs.

          5  What types of jobs are these, managerial jobs?

          6                 MR. GENN: Sure. Most of them are blue

          7  collar unionized jobs, and they include the Long

          8  Shoreman, the processing jobs that Axis will have,

          9  the trucking jobs, they still will be trucking in

         10  and out of the facility. Security jobs now in this

         11  area of port security, there is going to be a lot

         12  more security people there. And it will also be

         13  warehouse jobs. There's about 300,000 square feet of

         14  warehouse sheds in that facility and we'll have

         15  warehouse people in there full-time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Are there any

         17  percentage of these jobs coming from the Sunset

         18  community?

         19                 MR. GENN: Well, you know, Axis has

         20  been working with Community Board 7 and the Fifth

         21  Avenue Committee and UPROSE and others to identify

         22  candidates for these positions. And they've

         23  committed to seeking to hire 100 percent from Sunset

         24  Park, and if we don't get Sunset Park, we'll get Red

         25  Hook.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And UPROSE is

          3  supportive of this?

          4                 MR. GENN: I believe so. They're here

          5  today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          7  Comrie.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

          9  afternoon.

         10                 The overall plan for SBMT 30 years

         11  from now is what exactly? You said, it's full

         12  containerization? What is full containerization?

         13                 MR. GENN: It means that the

         14  automobiles and the break bulk would be relocated

         15  somewhere else, and the terminal would be converted

         16  to a container operation. It means that container

         17  cranes would be put on alongside the water, and you

         18  would build basically a major container operation

         19  with the rail yard supporting it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that's

         21  already been determined as part of the community

         22  board's long-term strategic plan, or how did that

         23  strategic plan get realized?

         24                 MR. GENN: Well, it gained acceptance.

         25  It really was just a blueprint. It was never an
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          2  adopted plan. It was a blueprint for EDC to be used

          3  to develop these maritime facilities.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you've

          5  come up with a location 30 years from now for the

          6  break-front and the other uses that are going to be

          7  there now?

          8                 MR. GENN: No. We're not saying that.

          9  We would have to find an area for them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, I'm not

         11  on the Waterfront Committee, but have you -- so,

         12  this entire area of the South Brooklyn Marine

         13  Terminal, how many blocks is that? How much area is

         14  that all together?

         15                 MR. GENN: It's 88 acres for SBMT

         16  stretching from 29th Street to 39th Street.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And where is

         18  the concrete facility? Is that a part of it?

         19                 MS. McDONALD: 25th Street.

         20                 MR. GENN: Just to the North.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         22                 And what type of a rail project?

         23  Where is that supposed to fold into it?

         24                 MS. McDONALD: Oh, that would start in

         25  New Jersey, come under the Harbor using

                                                            45

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  tunnel-boring machines. And is the exact location

          3  65th Street, or right adjacent? It comes in right in

          4  that vicinity and would compliment, when it is

          5  constructed it will compliment the port facilities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And I'm

          7  looking at this slide three. And the park area is

          8  going to be right next to the existing to where the

          9  break bulk terminal is going to be?

         10                 MR. GENN: It would be to the south

         11  about two piers down. So, it stretches from 51st

         12  Street to about 43rd Street.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that's an

         14  existing baseball diamond there, or is that part of

         15  the proposed --

         16                 MR. GENN: No, that was our vision.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is that part

         18  of what's going to be built with the park money?

         19                 MS. McDONALD: No. The funding to

         20  construct the park is a combination, I believe a big

         21  piece of it is coming from the brownfields for

         22  mediation, funds that the State Legislature adopted.

         23  It is, I think it's approximately 18 million to do

         24  that, to do the remediation, which is the biggest

         25  brownfields grant that the State of New York has
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          2  awarded. There is some congressional T-Liu

          3  (phonetic) money for the park, some Council money

          4  and the Administration has also contributed some

          5  money for the actual construction of the park.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          7  And where is the rail access at now?  The rail car

          8  loading areas coming in right behind the break bulk

          9  terminal?  Is that  --

         10                 MS. MCDONALD: On First Avenue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that

         12  exists today?

         13                 MS. MCDONALD: Correct.

         14                 MR. GENN: But it will be upgraded.

         15                 MS. McDONALD: It will be upgraded.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And who is

         17  doing the upgrade? Who is handling the cost of that

         18  upgrade?

         19                 MR. GENN: Well, we actually secured

         20   --  Congressman Nadler secured funds for us to do

         21  that upgrade, and we will be bidding the work

         22  shortly.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  So we

         24  don't have a picture now of what the site exists

         25  now?
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          2                 MR. GENN: Well, we will, in --  You

          3  can see it Council Member, on the screen now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          5                 MR. GENN: But we're going to be

          6  showing you a set of images during Axis  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That is so  --

          8  that large white  --  the first area there, that's

          9  where the breakfront's going to be.

         10                 MR. GENN: Yes, that's right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The break

         12  bulk, sorry.  But it doesn't talk about what  --

         13  you can't see what the area  --  I guess if you're

         14  looking at this from particular  --  the area east

         15  of it, or west of it.  I'm not sure what the

         16  direction is.  Or the area going towards 65th

         17  Street, what that looks like now.

         18                 MR. GENN: Towards 65th Street?  We

         19  can shows that. Marta, do you want to -- we'll pull

         20  that slide up, sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So just those

         22  two piers are particularly going to be the park

         23  area?  That you could see in that first slide?

         24                 MR. GENN: There you have it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's the
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          2  proposed.  But you got the proposed park in there.

          3                 MR. GENN: That's largely how it looks

          4  today.  But what you have right  --  forget about

          5  the green.  Right now, that's brown.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

          7                 MR. GENN: But you know, that includes

          8  the Bush Terminal area, the Rail Yards, First Avenue

          9  Rail Yard, and further south is the Brooklyn Meat

         10  Market, and then further south still is the Brooklyn

         11  Army terminal.

         12                 MS. McDONALD: And the 65th Street

         13  Yard is to the south of that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  Okay.

         15    Okay, I'll come back to some questions on it

         16  again. I just have some questions on the lease.

         17                 You said that at some point, that

         18  Axis can get I guess credits for doing more break

         19  bulk work and having more vehicles than projected.

         20  Is there a possibility that Axis could get to the

         21  point where they pay no money towards the City on

         22  the lease?

         23                 MR. GENN: No.  No, no.  What we have

         24  is a series of carrots and sticks, and the more they

         25  do by water above a certain amount, they get credit

                                                            49

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  for it, to help them  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. We are

          4  now returning to a situation like Yankee Stadium,

          5  where we're fighting over the amount of money

          6  because they claim they did all the maintenance, and

          7  they did all of this.  And we wind up with a net

          8  zero gain as far as  --

          9                 MR. GENN: No, because the base rent

         10  and PILOT is always there.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And the

         12  PILOT is fixed once it's set.

         13                 MR. GENN: After 12 years, it's 75

         14  percent of full PILOT.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Okay.

         16  All right. Thank you.  I don't have any other

         17  questions now Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I know that

         19  Council Member Katz has a question.  But I just

         20  wanted to ask, there are lessees on the site now.

         21  Right?  And I'm not sure that, I guess I missed

         22  that.

         23                 MR. GENN: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And who are they?

         25                 MR. GENN: We have Dealer Storage,
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          2  which stores automobiles for local dealers in

          3  Brooklyn, Queens, Long Island, and Manhattan.  And

          4  Plaza Auto Group.  They have their own operation in

          5  Brooklyn.  We also have, Cosco has a sort of a

          6  spillover parking lot across the street from their

          7  retail.  And the other tenant is Industry City,

          8  which has a parking lot along Second Avenue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And which of

         10  those tenants will remain?

         11                 MR. GENN: Plaza Auto.  Dealer

         12  Storage.  Industry City.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         14  Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I was going over

         16  with the Chair whether or not a certain topic had

         17  been brought up, and I think that I would like to

         18  bring it up.  But before I do that, just the 300

         19  jobs that you were talking about, I assume are the

         20  sustainable jobs for the future.  What about the

         21  development of the property, and I believe it's  --

         22  how many jobs does that bring in for construction,

         23  and everything that needs to go into the project?

         24                 MR. GENN: It's about 75, we estimated

         25  during construction.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.  So

          3  that's not included in the  --

          4                 MR. GENN: No.  That's separate.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So that's

          6  sustainable long- term jobs.

          7                 MS. McDONALD: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The question I

          9  really want to ask, and I apologize that I was late,

         10  so I know that you touched upon this, but clearly,

         11  Congressman Nadler has brought up several issues to

         12  folks that he has met with.  I would not be one of

         13  them, just so you know, so I haven't been able to

         14  ask him directly, but he's going to testify, and I

         15  look forward to his testimony.  But I'd like to know

         16  from you, because I'm not sure if the Chair is going

         17  to bring you back or not.  What is your opinion as

         18  to  -- clearly, there's a thought process out there

         19  that this is going to interfere with the tunnel, or

         20  that there's some issues about that. Now I just

         21  wanted to give you the opportunity to tell me, or

         22  tell us, your opinion on that.  How you intend on

         23  moving forward with the Congressman, because clearly

         24  you guys need to work out some issues.  And if you

         25  don't believe that there is a conflict, why do you
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          2  believe that there's an assertion that there is?

          3                 MS. McDONALD: I'll speak to that.

          4  First of all, I think the first issue to discuss is

          5  whether entering into a lease with a term of 20 plus

          6  five, plus five will preclude the construction of a

          7  freight tunnel, or the development of the container

          8  port terminals to compliment that freight tunnel, or

          9  act independently.  And as Andrew pointed out when

         10  we went through the testimony, and we'll be happy to

         11  sit with you separately if you'd like, the container

         12  port development happens to the south.  So

         13  envisioned starting in 1999, it would start at the

         14  south and then as demand grows, the terminal itself,

         15  Brooklyn Marine Terminal, would be converted if the

         16  demand is there, to a container port. And so we feel

         17  very strongly and very confidently that the term of

         18  the lease does not preclude the construction of a

         19  container port as envisioned in 1999, and as

         20  reinforced in the Comprehensive Port Improvement

         21  Plan.  So that's issue number one.

         22                 The second issue, which I touched on

         23  briefly when we were talking about the capital

         24  investments, you know, rule of thumb, when you make

         25  capital investments, is you like to have at least 30
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          2  years so that you recoup your capital investments.

          3  So that you issue the bonds, so that you have 30

          4  years.  So that second issue, that reinforces a 20

          5  plus five, plus five.

          6                 Third issue is that full realization

          7  of the financial benefits, both the revenue to the

          8  City and the portion of those funds that would go

          9  towards park maintenance, the $200,000 plus a year,

         10  that would pay for a portion of that park

         11  maintenance, would be  --  could be compromised

         12  somewhat if the term of the lease is shortened.

         13                 All those issues being said,  --  I

         14  do the same thing  --  all of those being said, we

         15  are evaluating a shorter term of the lease to see

         16  what that means on all of those fronts. And we will

         17  continue the conversation with Councilman Nadler,

         18  (sic) with Councilwoman Gonzalez, and with the

         19  appropriate Council Members and staff to get all

         20  these issues resolved.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I appreciate it.

         22    I look forward to hearing the Congressman's

         23  testimony.  I did meet with you, and I know the

         24  views by EDC and with Axis, and I just wanted to

         25  sort of give you the opportunity to comment on where
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          2  you thought the Congressman's testimony might go.

          3  So thank you.

          4                 MS. McDONALD: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the Chair,

          6  thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I think we'll

          8  move next to the Congressman.  But I did want to ask

          9  one last question about security.  Because we read a

         10  lot in the paper about port security. So I'd like to

         11  know what's going to be done to secure this

         12  operation.

         13                 MR. GENN: Okay.  Well earlier this

         14  year, about March, we worked with the Coast Guard to

         15  develop a facilities security plan for  --  we call

         16  it sort of low value cargoes, which would be the

         17  break bulk.  And that would have to be upgraded when

         18  automobiles came in, and further upgraded when it

         19  becomes a container terminal.  But we have  --  we

         20  began that process.  We have a fully implementable

         21  security plan for SBMT today.

         22                 MS. McDONALD: And just to add to

         23  that, we all saw the newspaper article a couple

         24  months back on the whole issue of port security and

         25  how important that is to the City of New York. And
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          2  our port facilities, everything that we do regarding

          3  getting a port security plan in place is done in

          4  connection with the Coast Guard, with Customs and

          5  Border Patrol.  There is a process that is very

          6  rigorous, that they will not allow facilities to

          7  open unless we have developed the plan in accordance

          8  with them.  And that they actually sign off on, and

          9  agree to.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  We may

         11  come back to you later on, but I wanted to invite

         12   --

         13                 MS. McDONALD: Thank you.

         14                 MR. GENN: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Congressman

         16  Nadler.

         17                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER:  Thank you

         18  Chairwoman Lappin. Let me just say, I'm going to

         19  read most of the prepared statement, and then I'll

         20  have some comments on EDC's testimony, which may not

         21  be covered in this.

         22                 I'm Congressman Jerrold Nadler.  I

         23  represent neighborhoods running from the Upper West

         24  Side of Manhattan to Coney Island in Brooklyn,

         25  including the waterfront areas in the Sunset Park
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          2  area.

          3                 Before I begin, I want to

          4  specifically commend Councilwoman Sara Gonzalez, who

          5  is a great advocate on behalf of Sunset Park and the

          6  community there, and is working very hard to be sure

          7  that we get the very best possible use out of our

          8  waterfront. I very much appreciate the leadership

          9  she has shown.                As you may know, I've

         10  been an advocate and a supporter of the Port of New

         11  York and New Jersey for more than 20 years.  I've

         12  been involved specifically, when I was in the State

         13  Assembly, representing the Upper West Side.  People

         14  thought I was crazy for putting member item money

         15  into Sunset Park, and Red Hook port facilities.  And

         16  I continued that involvement, Congressman Velazquez

         17  and I, along with the community board, negotiated

         18  the park as a condition of the port.  I was the one

         19  who pointed out that the community had been getting

         20   --  had been advocating this park for many years,

         21  but we'd probably only get funding if we said we'll

         22  have a major port project there and we can devote

         23  funding from that to the park, and that's the

         24  genesis of this park there.

         25                 I believe that our port is imperative
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          2  for the economic vitality of the City and the

          3  region.  And I believe Brooklyn must be a major part

          4  of that port.

          5                 By way of a  bit of background, the

          6  Port of New York and New Jersey is currently

          7  competing with Halifax and Norfolk to become the

          8   "hub port" for maritime commerce for the entire

          9  East Coast.  New York's port has two natural

         10  geographic advantages over those other cities.

         11  First, we have a huge regional market of about 35

         12  million people, which dwarfs our competitor's

         13  regional markets. And second, we are located at the

         14  center of the East Coast megalopolis.  We are now in

         15  the middle of a major two and a half billion dollar

         16  project to blast our shipping channels to 50 feet in

         17  order to accommodate state- of- the- art ships.  By

         18  the way, if it had been up to the Port Authority,

         19  and to EDCA, it would have been 45 feet.  It was my

         20  amendment to the 1996 Water Act that made it 50

         21  feet.  I think everybody is now happy that we did

         22  that.  I say that by way of saying that the Port

         23  Authority and EDC don't always foresee long- term

         24  port needs very accurately.  As long as that project

         25  is completed on schedule, we are firmly ahead of our
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          2  competition in this race.  And we will be able to

          3  retain and considerably expand the region's 230,000

          4  port- related jobs.  That's a Port Authority

          5  estimate from 1999.

          6                 According to EDC and Port Authority

          7  projections from 1999, port traffic for the Port

          8   --  that is the entire Port of New York, New Jersey

          9    --  was expected to increase  from 2.5 million

         10  TEUs, twenty- foot equivalent units.  One forty-

         11  foot container is two TEUs, to more than 10 million

         12  TUEs per year by 2020.  And 17 million by 2040.  In

         13  the seven years since that plan, trans- Atlantic

         14  container traffic has increased considerably faster

         15  than forecast.  We can therefore expect considerably

         16  greater business for the Port than originally

         17  estimated.  If the Port of New York and New Jersey

         18  is going to be able to handle anything like these

         19  volumes, and the jobs and the container and the tax

         20  revenues they will generate, we are going to need

         21  every inch of available land for container

         22  operations in Newark, Elizabeth, Howland Hook,

         23  Bayonne, and Brooklyn.

         24                 The only possible site left in New

         25  York City on New York Harbor, for a container port
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          2  is Sunset Park, centered on the South Brooklyn

          3  Marine Terminal.  Not limited to it, but centered on

          4  it.  Developing a healthy port operation at SBMT is

          5  an absolutely essential part of any overall port

          6  plan for New York.

          7                 In its 1999 Strategic Plan for the

          8  Redevelopment of the Port of New York, EDC, under

          9  Mayor Giuliani, envisioned a 350 acre container

         10  terminal in Sunset Park would create 6,000 jobs in

         11  ten years, and ultimately 17,000 jobs at full

         12  buildout in 20 years. That is 17,000 direct and

         13  indirect.  Not jobs on the site.  This Strategic

         14  Plan was supported not only by Brooklyn's Community

         15  Board Seven, and was referenced in its 197- a plan,

         16  but also by the vast majority of elected officials a

         17  the time, labor groups, and the Brooklyn Chamber of

         18  Commerce.

         19                 Unfortunately, it seems the Bloomberg

         20  Administration has forgotten these carefully

         21  developed plans, since we have heard almost nothing

         22  from them about long- term port plans except at a

         23  hearing like this, where they seek to justify a

         24  short- term plan. But we have heard nothing about

         25  going ahead with these long- term plans at all,
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          2  since the Administration came in.

          3                 An effective 30- year lease for an

          4  auto terminal would seem utterly inconsistent with

          5  these plans.  EDC has offered no analysis as to how

          6  this plan is proposed, would be consistent with the

          7  long- term port plan.  A preliminary analysis though

          8  would seem to indicate that a 30- year lease would

          9  preclude large elements of the long- term port plan.

         10    Anything that would preclude implementation of

         11  that plan should not be improved until there's a

         12  detailed analysis as either as to why the long- term

         13  port plan is no longer essential to the future

         14  economic development of the City. Or why the short-

         15  term plan is not in fact, incompatible with the

         16  long- term plan.  Rhetoric without detail analysis

         17  about how this lease does not conflict with EDC's

         18  long- term plan is not sufficient.

         19                 The worst thing the City leaders can

         20  do, is something we do all the time, and that is to

         21  capriciously eliminate, preclude long- term options

         22  without really looking at those long- term options.

         23  If someone came along and said, "We shouldn't have a

         24  container port here in 30 years, because ...", and

         25  had a detailed reason for that, well, debate that.
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          2  Maybe.  But to eliminate that possibility without

          3  even looking at it, just sort of on the fly, that is

          4  terrible.

          5                 EDC's 1999 plan, did, of course, as

          6  EDC testified this morning, include an auto terminal

          7  as part of the early phase of the development of the

          8  port.  The original 1999 plan stated EDC's intention

          9  to move the auto terminal out after 10 years.  Now,

         10  you heard testimony this morning that said 20 years.

         11    Here is the 1999 plan.  This is the Strategic Plan

         12  for the Redevelopment of the Port of New York,

         13  Executive Briefing, February, 1999.  On Page 19 of

         14  it, it says, "Program Three, 2005 to 2010, South

         15  Container Terminal  --  this is not where this would

         16  be, that would be the North.  But from 2005 to 2010,

         17   "100- acre fill and mitigation, 150 acre container

         18  terminal, 100 acres rail and warehouse"  Of course,

         19  it's now 2006, and we're hearing nothing about any

         20  of this. "Program three, 2010 to 2020, North

         21  Container Terminal.  Relocate noncontainer uses".

         22  So the relocation is in year 10 to 20.  In that time

         23  period.  To have someone come in here and say it's

         24  not till 20 years, is not quite accurate.  This says

         25  in years 10 to 20. During the 10 to 20 year time
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          2  period, they would relocate the noncontainer uses.

          3  Maybe in year 10.  Maybe in year 15.  Maybe over

          4  that time period.  But within years 10 to 20.  And

          5  of course, nothing was supposed to happen in the

          6  first 10 years of this plan, you've heard anything

          7  about, which is why I have considerable skepticism

          8  when I hear EDC talk about their dedication to this

          9  plan.  We've heard nothing about it for the last six

         10  or seven years, and we've heard nothing about any of

         11  the things that should be happening right now, which

         12  this Council should have approved and debated, until

         13  this morning when they blindly say, we're going

         14  ahead with this.

         15                 When EDC and Axis made their proposal

         16  to the community, EDC did not make clear that a 30-

         17  year master lease was inconsistent with the long-

         18  term container port use  here.  While I believe it

         19  is very commendable that Axis has committed a good

         20  number of jobs for the community, and would provide

         21  some infrastructure improvements, it is not a

         22  justifiable tradeoff if it precludes a long- term

         23  container operation that could generate directly or

         24  indirectly, according to EDC, up to 17,000 jobs.

         25  Let me be clear.  I do not oppose the Axis proposal.
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          2    In fact, I think everything that EDC said about it

          3  short term, makes imminent sense. I think it's a

          4  very good proposal, short term.  I think it does a

          5  lot of good things.  And it is a good preparation

          6  for a long- term container port.  But a shorter

          7  lease would seem essential.  A 30 year lease, 20

          8  years with two five year extensions is too long for

          9  this, and would in fact, prelude the next Mayor or

         10  the Mayor after him or her, or the Mayor after him

         11  or her or her, from making these decisions.  And

         12  that's not something we ought to do now.  Certainly

         13  not without much greater detailed analysis.

         14                 And all of this must be considered in

         15  light of what appears to be a City Administration

         16  hell- bent on stopping our last existing container

         17  operation.  Because this goes to the good faith of

         18  the Administration.  EDC, fought tooth and nail

         19  against the extension of the lease for the last

         20  remaining stevedore at the Red Hook Container

         21  Terminal.  If they are successful in shutting this

         22  operation down, which they plan to shut down in

         23  March of next year, and preclude the opening of a

         24  container port at SBMT for at least 20 years, we

         25  will simply lose all of our existing container
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          2  business.  Gone.  It will leave, along with the jobs

          3  it has, and it will be nearly impossible to get

          4  back.  We will have no real port operation.

          5  Brooklyn will not enjoy the benefits of major

          6  container commerce.  No 17,000 new jobs.  Gone.

          7                 I have been a long supporter of the

          8  Red Hook container facility.  The existing one.  An

          9  operation that provides about 500 local jobs.  I

         10  have also come to support the City's chosen use for

         11  Red Hook cruise operations.  My position of support

         12  was based on what I presumed was a shared

         13  commitment, which the Administration said was a

         14  shared commitment to avoiding any hiatus of

         15  container operations.  That is to say they

         16  represented to me that before the container

         17  operation was shut down in Red Hook, they would open

         18  up at least a small container operation at the same

         19  time, in Sunset Park.  Everyone recognizes that the

         20  better location for container operations is Sunset

         21  Park, not Red Hook, because of various factors.  But

         22  to shut what we have down in Red Hook and not to

         23  open anything up in Sunset Park for good long years,

         24  means we'll probably never get a container operation

         25  there.
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          2                 I have heard in the last few days

          3  that the lessee may be willing to negotiate on the

          4  term of a lease, but we were told the EDC is going

          5  to be much more hard line.  Why in the world would

          6  EDC want to stop a reasonable compromise that the

          7  lessee might be willing to adopt?  The whole point

          8  here is a reasonably shorter lease term that doesn't

          9  preclude a long- term container operation.  It makes

         10  for a win/win for everybody.

         11                 I do not oppose the Axis Group being

         12  at SBMT for as long as it makes sense for them and

         13  the City.  Period.  And I don't even oppose them

         14  being there permanently.  If someone could show that

         15  in fact, there is no economic necessity for a

         16  container port, no major job potential and tax

         17  revenue potential for a container port.  And

         18  frankly, if there is doubt in the City or State's

         19  mind about the feasibility of a port, then a shorter

         20  term lease shouldn't scare them, but by extension

         21  they should be able to ask why Axis is concerned,

         22  because the container port will never happen, and

         23  they'll be able to extend the lease.

         24                 But until some government entity

         25  takes a long hard look at the decision not to have a

                                                            66

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  container port despite EDC's representations here

          3  this morning, they've at least even made a decision

          4  not to have a container for reasons I'll get to in a

          5  minute, or at least they have not made a decision to

          6  have one. Because they've done nothing to advance

          7  that.  This Council should do nothing to preclude

          8  all of its options for the future. Therefore, at

          9  this moment, a 30- year lease are not acceptable.

         10  We must find a acceptable compromise.

         11                 That's the prepared statement.  Let

         12  me make a couple of comments on the EDC

         13  presentation.  Number one, they said 20 years  --

         14  that the 1999 year lease said 20 years before you

         15  have to relocate the auto terminal.  In fact, it's

         16  very clear from here that they envision that to take

         17  the 20 year period.

         18                 Second, and her, Joan McDonald's

         19  testimony was interesting.  She said we are  --

         20  well, they both said we are still committed to a

         21  long- term container operation.  Joan testified that

         22  that was contingent on the rail freight tunnel.  And

         23  indeed, it is.  She didn't mention that this

         24  Administration seems to have stopped the rail

         25  freight tunnel.  Now technically what they have
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          2  done, and I appreciate the difference, the Mayor,

          3  because of his political problem in Maspeth last

          4  year, the Mayor suspended the EIS.  It was about 95

          5  percent done, but he suspended it.  It remains in

          6  suspension.  The EDC has expressed its willingness

          7  to hand it over to someone else.  If someone else

          8  comes along who may want to do it.  But as far as

          9  the City is concerned, it's suspended.

         10  Indefinitely.  Now, Attorney General Spitzer has

         11  said that when he becomes Governor, if he becomes

         12  Governor, he wants to finish that as a matter of

         13  high priority.  So I hope that that will happen

         14  then.  But for the City Administration, the best you

         15  can say about their attitude toward the rail freight

         16  tunnel is that it's not friendly.  So to sit here

         17  and say that we are committed to the long- term

         18  container port, which cannot happen without the rail

         19  freight tunnel, but we're not going to do the rail

         20  freight tunnel, that's essentially what they're

         21  saying.  So their bona fides on their commitment to

         22  a long- term container port leave much to be

         23  desired.

         24                 Now, Mr. Genn was asked, the

         25  Chairwoman asked Mr. Genn about the commitment to
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          2  the container port.  He artfully evaded the

          3  question.  He answered two things.  He said, one,

          4  the Axis lease, the auto terminal, is a place

          5  holder.  It is the beginning of what could

          6  eventually could be a container port.  That is true.

          7    It could be.  And it is an excellent thing for the

          8  time being, as I said.  And it could lead, if

          9  there's a commitment to do so, to a container port

         10  later.  And then he cited Howland Hook. That is the

         11  money and the work the City is doing on the Howland

         12  Hook Container Port.  Which has nothing to do with a

         13  Brooklyn container port.  He did not say that while

         14  this is a place holder, we are going to continue and

         15  do anything about Brooklyn.

         16                 Now the interesting thing about

         17  Howland Hook is that --  and this is why a Brooklyn

         18  container port is so important  -- if you look at a

         19  map of New York, think of a map of New York from the

         20  bird's eye view, there are two separate harbors.

         21  There's New York Harbor, and there's Newark Bay.

         22  And if you sail a ship into Newark Harbor under the

         23  Varazzano's Bridge, you come immediately to Red

         24  Hook.  Not to Red Hook, to Sunset Park.  Excuse me.

         25  You sail right past the Narrows, turn right, and you
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          2  can dock in Sunset Park.  Sunset Park  --  or you

          3  can continue up and make a left, continue way up and

          4  make a left, and dock in Bayonne.  Bayonne and

          5  Sunset Park are both in New York Harbor.  New York

          6  Harbor is excellent.  Number one, it's a short trip

          7  from the Narrows.  And number two, you don't hit

          8  solid rock until you're 100 to 150 feet down in the

          9  channel, and 60 to 65 feet at the pierhead line. So

         10  when you talk about dredging, you're talking about

         11  pushing silt out of the way, which is cheap and easy

         12  to do.  And quick.  But you're not blasting solid

         13  rock, because there is no solid rock until 100, 150

         14  feet in the channel, 60 to 65 feet at the pierhead

         15  line.

         16                 But, take your ship again, sail it in

         17  under the Narrows, doesn't dock in Sunset Park,

         18  continues sailing northward, and makes a sharp left

         19  turn to avoid hitting Staten Island, and sails into

         20  the Kill van Kull.  The Kill van Kull is a narrow,

         21  treacherous body of water separating Bayonne to the

         22  north, and Staten Island to the south.  And as you

         23  sail for an hour and a half or so through the Kill

         24  van Kull, you hit Shooter's Island, so you make a

         25  sharp right turn, if you're small enough to do it,
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          2  to avoid hitting Shooter's Island, and then you make

          3  another left turn and you're in Newark Bay.  Where

          4  you can dock at Port Newark or Port Elizabeth, or

          5  make a further turn, sail south, and you're at

          6  Howland Hook in Staten Island.  Now Howland's Hook

          7  has the political advantage from the Port Authority

          8  point of view  --  the Port Authority of course, we

          9  know, has always wanted to ports of New Jersey, and

         10  not New York.  Howland Hook has the political

         11  advantage of being in New York City. Politically.

         12  But from a geographical point of view, it's the only

         13  place in New York City on the wrong side of the Kill

         14  van Kull.  The Kill van Kull in Newark Bay, you hit

         15  solid rock at 35 feet.  We're now in the middle of a

         16  two and a half billion dollar project, to blast the

         17  rock down to 50 feet.  And as I said, it was my

         18  amendment that got it to 50 feet, because the Port

         19  Authority was only interested in 45 feet.  But

         20  that's past tense.  So we're now spending mostly

         21  federal money, two and a half billion dollars to

         22  blast the rock to 50 feet to make it available for

         23  Howland Hook and for Port Newark, Port Elizabeth,

         24  and maybe Howland Hook.  That's still somewhat

         25  questionable.  We're fighting for that.
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          2                 So Howland Hook is the only place in

          3  New York that enjoys the geographical disadvantage

          4  of being in Newark Bay as opposed to the New York

          5  Harbor.

          6                 Now, Brooklyn is ideally situated.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Congressman, I

          8  have to ask you to wrap up, only because we have a

          9  Council meeting that starts --

         10                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I will wrap up in

         11  one moment. Let me just say, one other thing was

         12  said.  One other thing was said, and that is that

         13  the 2005 plan, Comprehensive Port Plan says we don't

         14  need land, that we have adequate land until 2037.

         15  Now, there are a lot of reasons to doubt the

         16  accuracy of that forecast. But assuming it's

         17  accurate, what they're really saying is, we can, by

         18  hook and by crook, avoid placing any port activity,

         19  revenues, and jobs in Brooklyn, and do it all in New

         20  Jersey, and some in Howland's Hook.  We can get away

         21  with it as long as 2037.  I don't think they can get

         22  away with it as long as 2037.  But why is it in the

         23  interest of New York to keep everything in New

         24  Jersey, with a little left over in Howland Hook?

         25  Now that's the bias of the Port Authority.  They've
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          2  wanted to do that for a long time.  But it's very

          3  much in the interest of New York to bring much of

          4  this to Brooklyn, and all those associated jobs and

          5  revenues.

          6                 And again, as far as this is

          7  concerned, this is an excellent proposals in many

          8  respects, but the lease term must be shortened, so

          9  that it does not preclude a long- term development

         10  that this Administration seems to have no interest

         11  in, despite its rhetoric, but that maybe a future

         12  Administration or the next Governor will have an

         13  interest in.  Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         15  much.  I think it's clear that this Administration

         16  doesn't share the same goals maybe that the previous

         17  Administration did, and economic development, a

         18  working poor job, that's something that we can all

         19  work towards.  And this is in the short term.

         20  Helpful to get us there, but as you mentioned there

         21  has been no work done on any other parts of the

         22  plan.  This is the only piece that we've heard

         23  about.

         24                 So I wanted to see if any  --

         25  Council Member Gonzalez, do you have any questions?
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          2  Council Member Katz?  Any of my other colleagues?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I understand

          4  this is a very controversial topic for a lot of

          5  folks.  I notice that Maspeth is no longer on the

          6  list of you know, all the sites that are necessary.

          7  I notice it's Newark, Elizabeth, Howland Hook,

          8  Bayonne, and Brooklyn.

          9                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Well Maspeth was

         10  never on a site as a container port.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: As a container

         12  port.  So is Maspeth still like in discussion as we

         13  move forward?  On being part of the  --

         14                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Yes, all right.

         15  Maspeth was never in discussion as a port.  Maspeth

         16  is not on the river.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I understand

         18  that.  No wait.  Congressman.  Let's not confuse the

         19  issue.  My issue is not really what is being used

         20  for where.  My issue really is, is Maspeth still in

         21  the pipeline for the place where the trucks would

         22  take the equipment  --

         23                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: The answer is

         24  that the preliminary, the draft EIS, the draft EIS

         25  for the rail freight tunnel, which is separate from
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          2  the port, the draft EIS for the rail freight tunnel

          3  envisioned one major rail terminal in New York City

          4   --  on major truck to rail, rail to truck in New

          5  York City.  The moment I saw that, which was before

          6  it was released, I said that, Wait a minute.  From a

          7  rail freight point of view, you don't want

          8  everything concentrated at one point.  You want your

          9  truck drayage, the truck hauls to be as short as

         10  possible.  Why are you doing only one terminal?  It

         11  was released in that frame.  The people of Maspeth

         12  objected to it.  There's a lot of argument about how

         13  many trucks it would bring, but the Mayor told the

         14  consultant, don't talk publicly.  So the consultants

         15  couldn't reassure the community. Couldn't say that

         16  the figure that they were being told was nonsense,

         17  because his lips were buttoned up, and still are.

         18                 But pursuant to my suggestion to the

         19  consultant, they started looking at alternative

         20  sites.  Not alternative in the sense of replacing

         21  Maspeth, but in the sense of supplementing it, so

         22  that it wouldn't all be at Maspeth.  They had

         23  tentatively identified two preliminary sites.  But

         24  then the work was frozen, so that they have not been

         25  able to complete the analysis of those two
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          2  alternative sites, which are New Lots, Brooklyn; and

          3  Oak Point in the Bronx, where the City now wants to

          4  put a prison, to preclude that possibility.

          5                 But the answer is that if the rail

          6  freight tunnel project comes alive again, then

          7  Maspeth and alternative sites will have to be

          8  finished to be analyzed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just I mean,

         10  with all due respect again  --

         11                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: Excuse me, not

         12  alternative sites, supplemental sites.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Supplemental

         14  sites.  I just wanted for the record, and I don't

         15  want this to pass.  I felt EDC and whoever was

         16  involved with this project, did a phenomenal job at

         17  the time, of reaching out to the community about

         18  Maspeth.  I mean, I had, myself, not only as part of

         19  the district, but also as the Chair of Land Use,

         20  hours of meetings regarding Maspeth, with EDC. Not

         21  to mention them making two presentations, I believe

         22  it was, at the Borough board, regarding Maspeth.  So

         23  I mean I just  --  I guess my issue here is that as

         24  Chair of the Land Use Committee now, and not really

         25  as the representative in the area there, my concern
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          2  is that if the City is against the tunnel, what's

          3  going to happen now, in your view?  Like how do we

          4  move forward is really the question.  Because my

          5  concern as this Committee, the full Land Use

          6  Committee, is that as we move forward in the next

          7  three years, I'm very worried that almost every

          8  application that may or may not have something to do

          9  with the port starts getting mixed up in this

         10  political quagmire of what to do.  And I guess I

         11  want, from your perspective, if the City is not

         12  moving forward in your view, and we don't really

         13  have a shovel anywhere, how do we move forward on

         14  other projects that may be --

         15                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I think that's a

         16  very, very good question, and raises a larger issue.

         17    But first of all, let me just say that I think EDC

         18  did do a very, very good job of reaching out until

         19  they were told to shut up.  And after that, for

         20  example, the mention of possible supplemental sites

         21  was never mentioned publicly till a few minutes ago,

         22  when I mentioned it, because the consultant was told

         23  not to mention it as a possibility.  Not to say

         24  anything. And the consultant hasn't said anything

         25  publicly.
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          2                 So reassuring the community was

          3  simply not possible, because you couldn't say

          4  anything.  And they haven't.  Number one.

          5                 Number two, there is a large problem,

          6  which you just put your finger on.  And it's not

          7  just with the respect with the rail freight tunnel.

          8  The City and the State have no freight policy.  If

          9  you assume  --  forget the rail freight tunnel for a

         10  moment, or even the port  --  if you assume an

         11  average economic development growth rate in the City

         12  of New York of between two and three quarter and

         13  three percent a year, over the next 20 years, which

         14  is a low assumption.  You should probably assume

         15  three and three quarters or four percent.  But be

         16  conservative.  Assume two and three quarters and

         17  three percent.  The volume of freight coming into

         18  New York City and Long Island is going to increase

         19  by 80 percent in 20 years.  That means 60 percent

         20  more tractor trailers on our streets and roads.

         21  Where are we going to put them?  How are we going to

         22  handle them?  All of us are getting complaints from

         23  our constituents about that now.  What is the answer

         24  to this?  There is no answer.  The City Department

         25  of Transportation will tell you, well, we'll have
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          2  high occupancy vehicle lanes, we'll have intelligent

          3  transportation, congestion pricing.  All of those

          4  are nice.  But they are essentially means of

          5  maximizing the efficiency with which you use an

          6  existing asset, namely the existing highway system.

          7  Maybe it will get you 15 percent better usage, but

          8  that's it.  It will you know, make you use what you

          9  have a little more efficiently.

         10                 The whole point of the rail freight

         11  tunnel and of other rail things is we've got a major

         12  asset namely a rail system, which we basically don't

         13  use, which can help with that.  But, since no one

         14  has done long- term freight planning, no one has

         15  looked at how we're going to do  --  no one has done

         16  long- term freight planning.  No one has looked and

         17  said, well, should we do the tunnel?  Or at least

         18  they stopped looking.  If we don't do the tunnel,

         19  how do we revive the folks?  What do we do?  What

         20  pieces of land that used to be rail yards, that used

         21  to be sidings, that used to be terminals, what are

         22  we going to need down the road for rail or port or

         23  other things?  And what don't we need?  What's

         24  really surplus?  Instead, EDC looks at every piece

         25  of land, and says, how can we maximize revenue on
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          2  this empty lot?  This empty lot, which used to be a

          3  rail terminal, maybe should be again, how can we

          4  maximize rail terminal?  We'll build a Costco here.

          5  We'll have a prison there.  We'll do a housing

          6  project there.  And gradually, we are losing every

          7  option we will have without looking at them.  And we

          8  will be in a straight jacket.

          9            So, and that's the problem we have.  Now

         10  how do we proceed?  My hope is that we proceed is

         11  that the Governor  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Madam Chair, we

         13  have only an hour and we have to hear from the

         14  applicant still.  And we have 17 people signed up to

         15  testify.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I hear you.

         17  Just one final question, which is a yes or a no.

         18  Congresswoman Velazquez, what's here opinion on

         19  this?

         20                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: I think it's fair

         21  to say that -  that's not yes or not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, the answer

         23  is she's supportive or not.  I mean I just  --

         24                 CONGRESSMAN NADLER: She's supportive

         25  of the project, but she wants it to be consistent
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          2  with a long- term container port.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you

          5  Congressman.  And I just want to  --  as you're

          6  wrapping up  --  I wanted to state for the record,

          7  in terms of EDC, and I think everybody seems to

          8  agree that this is a good step in terms of the long-

          9  term vision.  And there was testimony on the record

         10  today that this Administration is committed to

         11  moving that vision of a container port forward.  And

         12  before we discuss any more leases for maritime uses

         13  in the Brooklyn waterfront in this Committee, I hope

         14  that there will be a much more lengthy discussion

         15  and real plans for progress to move that mission

         16  forward.  Because I don't want to hear in testimony,

         17  from any City agency, that there's a commitment to

         18  something, unless that's true and it's real.

         19                 With that said, I'd like to bring up

         20  the applicants and give you an opportunity.  Robert

         21  Fleming, and John Harrington, from Axis.

         22                 Please begin.

         23                 MR. HARRINGTON: Good afternoon Madam

         24  Chair, and Members of the City Council of this

         25  Committee.  My name is John Harrington.  I'm the
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          2  President of Axis Group.  I'm grateful for the

          3  opportunity to speak to you this afternoon.  In the

          4  interest of time, I'll be providing a very brief

          5  overview about our Axis organization, and while we

          6  wait for the slides to catch up, I'll just briefly

          7  describe who we are and what we do.

          8                 Axis provides logistic solutions and

          9  value added services to the automotive finish

         10  vehicle and remarketing industries.  Who are our

         11  clients?  We basically serve every auto manufacturer

         12  in one capacity or another.  We serve the big five:

         13  General Motors, Ford, Daimler Chrysler, Toyota,

         14  Honda, as well as the import manufacturers.

         15                 In 2005, Axis was the largest

         16  transportation and inspection service provider to

         17  rental program and off- lease fleet vehicles.  Axis

         18  processed over 200,000 vehicles in the United States

         19  and in Mexico.

         20                 The service capabilities of Axis are

         21  many.  We perform inventory yard management type

         22  services to vehicle accessorization; vehicle

         23  processing, all the way to things such as digital

         24  photo processing for uplinks to smart auction and

         25  manufacturer auction sites.
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          2                 The most relevant service offering to

          3  this project is vehicle processing.  Actually guys,

          4  we won't even need that slides.  You can just shut

          5  that down.  I'll just walk through this very

          6  quickly.

          7                 Basically, if I could just briefly

          8  describe the vehicle processing market in the

          9  Northeast.  Basically, in New Jersey, you have ports

         10  in Newark and Elizabeth.  Those combined sites

         11  process over 600,000 vehicles on an annual basis.

         12  Those 600,000 vehicles represent over 700 union

         13  jobs.  That's just in New Jersey.  In Rhode Island,

         14  at Port Davisville, they have the capacity to do

         15  125,000 units annually.  In Maryland, at the Port of

         16  Baltimore, they do over a half million vehicles

         17  annually.  And finally, in the Port of Wilmington,

         18  Delaware, a facility which I personally opened and

         19  ran for our organization back in the mid '90s, we

         20  had the capacity to produce and process over 125,000

         21  units annually.  And in our operation, that involved

         22  300 direct union jobs in Wilmington.

         23                 Now, today, New York does not

         24  participate in any of that business.  And that's a

         25  1.4 million vehicle market that New York doesn't
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          2  participate.  Those combined locations, those four

          3  different states that I just described, have the

          4  ability or occupy over 2,000 processing jobs, mostly

          5  unionized.

          6                 Now specific to the processing

          7  services of Axis, we have over 30 years of vehicle

          8  processing experience.  Axis, its affiliates and

          9  subsidiaries directly employ over 80 percent of our

         10  workforce is union labor.  Now the majority

         11  representative of those unions are the International

         12  Brotherhood of Teamsters.

         13                 Finally, just to talk a little bit

         14  about our workforce development goals.  You know,

         15  Axis is a very organized labor, union- friendly

         16  company.  Axis, its affiliates, employ over 4,000

         17  Teamster union jobs in the United States and in

         18  Canada.  So from a organized labor standpoint, we're

         19  experienced.  We feel we have very friendly

         20  organized labor policy, and we look forward to

         21  working in South Brooklyn with all the different

         22  constituents.

         23                 And basically, that concludes my

         24  portion of the presentation here today.  Thank you

         25  for the opportunity.
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          2                 MR. FLEMING: Chair Lappin, City

          3  Council Members of the Subcommittee, thank you for

          4  your time and attention.  I will try to be brief as

          5  well.  My name is Robert Fleming, and I'm the Vice

          6  President of Finance for the Axis Group.  Axis

          7  responded to the EDC's Request for Proposals to

          8  operate an auto marine facility at South Brooklyn in

          9  2000 because of our vital interest in developing

         10  this business in New York City.  On the strength of

         11  our proposal for development, Axis was named the

         12  conditional designee in 2001.  We then began a long

         13  process of community outreach to understand the

         14  local needs and interests.  An important part of

         15  that outreach was our discussions with Councilman

         16  Gonzalez, who has been very helpful, insightful, and

         17  supportive, and we thank you for that.  The

         18  knowledge gained through our outreach, together with

         19  the technical engineering of the capital

         20  improvements, and the local market research, gave

         21  Axis the confidence that this lease serves all

         22  parties involved.  Axis looks forward to operating

         23  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  Not only is the

         24  lease negotiated and proposed similar to the

         25  industry standard, but it also creates immediate
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          2  employment and economic benefits for the residents

          3  of South Brooklyn.

          4                 Above and beyond the commercial terms

          5  of the proposed lease, there's also funding for the

          6  park at Bush Terminal. Axis plans to develop the

          7  business at the business in three phases. The first

          8  phase will begin soon after the lease commencement,

          9  and will entail the arrival of break bulk ships at

         10  SBMT later this year.  Axis has been approached by

         11  several shippers of lumber and other building

         12  materials.  We believe that as soon as the needed

         13  dredging is completed, those ships can begin to call

         14  at South Brooklyn, which will immediately create

         15  stevedoring jobs.

         16                 Also during this phase, Axis will

         17  continue to work with the current tenants, Dealer

         18  Storage and Plaza Auto, who are providing the local

         19  auto dealerships with valuable and needed services.

         20                 The second phase of business

         21  development will be marked by the arrival of barges

         22  from New Jersey.  These barges will transport

         23  domestically and internationally- built cars and

         24  trucks, which were either railed or shipped to the

         25  auto processing facilities there.  The immediate
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          2  benefit of barging will be a reduction in the trucks

          3  on the bridges and highways leading into Brooklyn.

          4  The other benefit will be additional job creation

          5  for the local community.

          6                 The final phase of business

          7  development, which will coincide with the completion

          8  of the City's and Axis' capital improvements, will

          9  begin with the arrival of deep water vessels with

         10  imported new vehicles.  The direct importation of

         11  new vehicles to South Brooklyn will further increase

         12  local employment, and further reduce trucking from

         13  New Jersey.

         14                 In summary, the benefits of this

         15  lease and the Axis business development plan are: An

         16  immediate start to maritime activity at South

         17  Brooklyn Marine Terminal, with ship calls to begin

         18  later this year; Local hiring, which will begin with

         19  an estimated 100 jobs in the first year; Reduction

         20  in the truck trips on the bridges and highways, as a

         21  result of the barging; and a long- term job creation

         22  of 300 positions, which will pay high wages and have

         23  good benefits.  It's expected that most of these

         24  jobs will, in fact, be union positions.

         25                 Thank you for your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  And I

          3  want to commend Council Member Gonzalez for working

          4  with you, and making sure that there are going to be

          5  good paying union jobs coming into her district, and

          6  I know you've been very receptive and cooperative.

          7                 I have a couple of questions.  One,

          8  ship calls beginning later this year.  So who runs

          9  that piece of the operation?  Do you contract out?

         10                 MR. FLEMING: Well it's traditional

         11  that as an auto marine processing, we will engage a

         12  port operator, who will directly employ the

         13  stevedores.  That's pretty much the model throughout

         14  the country.  And so we have actually put out an

         15  RFEI earlier this year, in anticipation of the

         16  lease, soliciting interest from port operators in

         17  the Northeast, and some nontraditional port

         18  operators outside the United States.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  And I

         20  think from the Congressman's testimony, and some

         21  other, I think the statements I think that Council

         22  Member Gonzalez made, and some of my colleagues,

         23  there seems to be some consensus around the fact

         24  that this is a good project.  The question is around

         25  how long the project would remain on this piece of
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          2  the waterfront.  Is Axis open to something shorter

          3  than 30 years?

          4                 MR. FLEMING: Well, we respect

          5  Councilman Gonzalez's position.  We promised her we

          6  would consider that.  The issues involved are the

          7  amortization of the investment.  There's a

          8  considerable capital investment on Axis' part.  The

          9  lack of the jobs that would subsequently be created.

         10    And the commitments from our customers.  I mean,

         11  the customers are looking for a solution to a

         12  problem, which is a vehicle logistics, or a break

         13  bulk logistics question.  Having said that, we are

         14  open to the idea.  But I'm not sure that it's

         15  possible to look at anything less than 20 years,

         16  given all of those factors.  Amortization of the

         17  investment, as well as the commitments from the

         18  customers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So I think EDC

         20  testified it was a $12 million capital investment

         21  from Axis.

         22                 MR. FLEMING: Initially, it will be

         23  $12 million.  We expect that over the 20 years, we

         24  will invest over $31 million.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: How long do you
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          2  think it would take to amortize the initial $12

          3  million?  Because  --  I guess my question is  --  I

          4  mean, some of your figures are based on the ongoing

          5  maintenance.  I mean, and the larger piece.  So if

          6  the lease were shorter, you'd be paying less for

          7  maintenance.  So  --

          8                 MR. FLEMING: Well there is the aspect

          9  of the lease which requires us to maintain the

         10  facility, and once it's improved, asphalt and things

         11  like that have basically a 15- year life.  So we are

         12  looking at some replacement of that at the end.

         13  Because remember, we won't actually get to use the

         14  facility for auto marine for five years, simply

         15  because of the condition of the SBMT at this point.

         16                 So assuming at that point, we would

         17   --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If there's a City

         19  disinvested.

         20                 MR. FLEMING: I didn't use the word

         21   "derelict", or did I?  No.  So at 20 years, we

         22  would be obligated to do that paving and some of

         23  that other work.  So that's really why the 20 years

         24  makes the most sense.  We don't get to use it for

         25  five years, and then the 15 years, we'd actually
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          2  have a viable commercial model where we could have

          3  the employment we've talked about.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Any other

          5  questions? Okay.  Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. HARRINGTON: Thank you for your

          7  time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Next, I'd like to

          9  hear from some folks in labor.  Ed Ott, from the

         10  Central Labor Committee.  You know what we'll do?

         11  Why don't we do a panel of three.  Randolph Pierce,

         12  Chairperson of Community Board Seven; Anthony

         13  Aquilino, from Plaza Auto Mall.

         14                 And we're going to do a  --  we're

         15  going to ask you to keep to a two- minute time

         16  limit.  Only because we don't have a lot of time

         17  left.  But I will try  --  you know, if you don't

         18  need to take a full two minutes, that's great, and I

         19  will try to be a little bit lenient.  Ed, do you

         20  want to  --

         21                      MR. OTT: I'll come in under two.

         22    My name is Ed Ott.  I'm the Director of Public

         23  Policy for the New York City Central Labor Council.

         24  Madam Chairperson, I want to thank you and the

         25  Council Members for providing this forum.  I work as
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          2  the Director of Public Policy for the New York City

          3  Central Labor Council.  Our participation here today

          4  is part of a long- held concern for the use of our

          5  waterfronts and adjacent land.  And truth is,

          6  Congressman Nadler probably started his education of

          7  me on these issues when he was in the Assembly.  And

          8  has stayed with this for a long time.  And there's a

          9  lesson in that alone.

         10                 The development of the port and the

         11  future economic policy of the City requires

         12  commitment.  And the current Administration has

         13  shown an extraordinary lack of follow up to what was

         14    --  some momentum that was built up in the late

         15   '90s.

         16                 We support these kinds of projects

         17  because they contribute to the diversification of

         18  the economy.  And they're vitally important for this

         19  City to keep its competitive advantage, and if we're

         20  going to remain a trading city.  This  --  you know,

         21  people talk about this like it's small potatoes.

         22  This is a big deal, and we need to pay attention to

         23  what goes on here.

         24                 The development of the port in South

         25  Brooklyn is important to the diversification of the
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          2  economy and the creation of good jobs for workers of

          3  the City.  The preservation of our industrial and

          4  maritime waterfront requires commitment and

          5  planning.  Some of the momentum that was started in

          6  the '90s is being lost in a rush to develop the

          7  waterfront exclusively as luxury high- rise

          8  apartments.  It is our position the plans for the

          9  port including a freight rail tunnel, go forward and

         10  quickly.

         11                 We believe that the Axis Group has

         12  offered a project that allows a productive use for

         13  the Maritime Terminal, and preserves the facility

         14  for maritime use in the future.  The creation of 300

         15  unionized jobs and the commitment to local hiring

         16  allow us to support this project and retain our goal

         17  of constructing a container port in the future.

         18                 It is our belief that the parties to

         19  the lease of this land, 74 acres, can arrive at

         20  terms that allow for the short term use without

         21  harming the long- term plans for the development of

         22  the port.

         23                 In a lot of ways, because of the

         24  involvement of the local Councilwoman, the company

         25  involved, and the involvement of the unions, and the
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          2  community, there's a lot of very good, positive

          3  things here that could serve for a model for these

          4  types of developments.  Everybody is at the table

          5  early.  Everybody understands they have a stake in

          6  it.  And there's a commitment to local hiring.  A

          7  part of what we're trying to accomplish here, with

          8  the maintaining of the industrial and maritime

          9  waterfront, is that there are blue collar ladders in

         10  this City that allow people to start, coming right

         11  out of school, and work for life, and end up as

         12  homeowners, and hopefully, become a problem for the

         13  suburbs.  But the honest to God truth is, is that

         14  there's not enough of these jobs in the City.  And

         15  this is something where the government, in

         16  collaboration with private sector investment, is

         17  doing something that's vitally important going

         18  forward.

         19                 This is also the first time I'm

         20  testifying for a project that I probably won't live

         21  to see, but it's okay.

         22                 MR. PEERS: Chairwoman Lappin,

         23  Councilwoman Gonzalez, and other Members of the

         24  Committee, thank you for giving me the opportunity

         25  to testify this morning.  I'm going to quickly go
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          2  through my testimony and then I think I need to

          3  correct the record as to the Community Board's

          4  position with respect to the buildout of a larger

          5  container port in Sunset Park, which as been

          6  misrepresented, I think by some of the other

          7  testimony.

          8                 On April 20, 2005, the full community

          9  board  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Mr. Peers, can

         11  you just identify yourself for the record?

         12                 MR. PEERS: Sure. Randolph Peers,

         13  Chairperson of Community Board Seven, representing

         14  the neighborhoods of Sunset Park, Windsor Terrace,

         15  and Greenwood Heights.

         16                 On April 20, 2005, the full community

         17  board voted to support the project by a vote of 28

         18  in favor, and only 2 opposed. The text of the

         19  resolution was as follows:

         20                 Community Board Seven resolves to

         21  give Axis Group its whole support in obtaining a

         22  lease to use the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal

         23  facilities based upon their commitment to: One,

         24  reach out to the community and seek 100 percent a

         25  Sunset Park workforce; number two, reduce truck
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          2  traffic by making use of barges and other water-

          3  based transportation; and three, support the

          4  greenway along the waterfront.

          5                 Since the passage of the resolution,

          6  we also solicited Axis Group's support for the

          7  waterfront park that will be developed in Sunset

          8  Park at the current Bush Terminal site, between 43rd

          9  and 51st Streets.  We are pleased to see that EDC,

         10  as part of the lease agreement, will be committing

         11  three percent of the lease payments annually for the

         12  ongoing maintenance of the park.

         13                 We are also satisfied that Axis

         14  Group, which has been working closely with

         15  Councilwoman Gonzalez, the Fifth Avenue Committee,

         16  and a coalition of other community groups that serve

         17  the Sunset Park community, is developing a process

         18  to ensure local hiring for the 165 jobs in which the

         19  hiring will be directly controlled by Axis.  Such

         20  positions include assembly technicians, paint and

         21  body work specialists, mechanics, inspectors, truck

         22  drivers, and security guards.  These positions

         23  represent good paying jobs and fit well with the

         24  skill set of many of the residents in the community.

         25    These jobs, along with those that will eventually
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          2  be created as a result of the Sims Hugo Neu

          3  recycling facility, represent the type of investment

          4  in new job creation through appropriate maritime and

          5  industrial uses that our board has consistently

          6  advocated for.

          7                 With respect to our view of a larger

          8  container port, first let me state that we do not

          9  support the port plan, and the 197- a plan, because

         10  we have yet to submit a 197- a plan.  So when that's

         11  said, that's  incorrect.  Our 197- a plan will be

         12  submitted in the next few months.  We referenced the

         13  building of a larger container port three times in

         14  that plan.  And all three times, we consistently say

         15  we will support a larger container port only if the

         16  cross- harbor rail freight tunnel is built.  And

         17  under those conditions, the larger container port

         18  gets built south of SBMT, closer to the Brooklyn

         19  Army Terminal, near the 65th Street rail lines.  So

         20  in that sense, we don't believe a long- term lease

         21  precludes the development of a larger container

         22  port.

         23                 Okay.  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Well I just

         25  want to say thank you so much for your testimony.
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          2  Chairman of Community Board Seven, where I came

          3  from.  You're doing a terrific job, and we're going

          4  to continue, again, like I said earlier, to be

          5  thoughtful, even though this is an excellent

          6  project, I love the process here today.  And thank

          7  you Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          9                 MR. AQUILINO: My name is Anthony

         10  Aquilino.  I'm here to speak on behalf of the Plaza

         11  Auto Mall Group.  We are a large automobile

         12  dealership located here in Brooklyn.  We are

         13  presently renting space at South Brooklyn Marine

         14  Terminal.  We clean, prep, and accessorize cars for

         15  a lot of other dealers in Manhattan, Queens, and

         16  Long Island.

         17                 We plan to be the workforce for the

         18  Axis Group.  We take entry level employees, turn

         19  them into electronic installers and auto mechanics,

         20  and provide jobs for a lot of people.  We plan

         21  immediately upon Axis Group obtaining this property,

         22  we plan immediately to employ about 50 to 70 people,

         23  to accommodate them. Those jobs, just from the jobs

         24  that they're talking about, within the next three to

         25  five years, we probably will be responsible for
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          2  about 170 of them.

          3                 We ask you to please support this.

          4  And we thank you for all your consideration.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  We're

          6  going to do a panel in support, and then a panel in

          7  opposition.  Bill Lipton, Working Families Party;

          8  Peter Cabezas, Teamsters Council Sixteen; and

          9  Michelle de la Uz, if I'm pronouncing that right,

         10  from the Fifth Avenue Committee.  Please proceed.

         11                 MR. CABEZAS: Good afternoon.  I'm

         12  Pedro Cabezas. I'm President of Local 210.  I'm here

         13  on behalf of Gary LaBarbera, President of Council

         14  Sixteen, Teamsters here in New York.

         15                 Good afternoon Chairperson Jessica

         16  Lappin, and Members of the Landmarks, Public Siting,

         17  and Maritime Uses Committee.  I am here testifying

         18  on behalf of Gary LaBarbera, President of the

         19  International Brotherhood of Teamsters Joint Council

         20  Sixteen, representing 120,000 working men and women,

         21  20,000 of whom reside in Brooklyn, in support of the

         22  Axis Group project to build an auto processing

         23  facility at the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal, and

         24  to encourage you to vote to approve the lease.

         25                 This project, with its strong labor
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          2  component, clearly meets the requirements we seek

          3  when considering endorsement.  The Teamsters Joint

          4  Council Sixteen has a commitment from the Axis Group

          5  to have Teamsters represent a majority of these

          6  workers, all of whom will come from the

          7  neighborhood.

          8                 First, the designee, and its parent

          9  company, Allied Automotive Group, are two of the

         10  largest employers of Teamster members.  Both have

         11  strong, positive track records of working with the

         12  International Brotherhood of Teamsters nationwide.

         13  They have employed thousands of our members,

         14  including those in Port Jersey, and in Ridgewood New

         15  Jersey, where 134 of our members are currently

         16  employed, and have always worked in good faith with

         17  our union, in all of their operations.

         18                 Second, the project will create over

         19  300 stable jobs with good wages, a solid training

         20  program, and a fair benefit package for all

         21  employees.  Moreover, the designee has committed to

         22  local hiring, something we encouraged potential

         23  employers to explore.

         24                 We understand that concerns have been

         25  raised in regards to the duration of the lease
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          2  agreement, and the long- term use of the site.  Our

          3  understanding is that Axis is obligated under the

          4  lease, to receive regular vessel calls by break bulk

          5  vessels from day one, thereby ensuring maritime use.

          6    However, we strongly encourage the City to work

          7  towards a speedy resolution to ensure the concern

          8  regarding the length of the lease agreement is

          9  addressed.

         10                 We commend the City of New York and

         11  New York City Economic Development Corporation for

         12  envisioning this use in South Brooklyn Marine

         13  Terminal, and look forward to working closely with

         14  the Axis Group and the City to ensure the success of

         15  this project.            Thank you for your time and

         16  consideration in this matter.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I guess I should

         18  explain.  The clock is set for three minutes, but it

         19  should be set for two minutes.  It's broken.  So

         20  when it comes down to one minute, that's when you'll

         21  know you're actually  --  your time is up.

         22                 MR. LIPTON: Chairwoman Lappin,

         23  distinguished Council Members, thank you for giving

         24  me the opportunity to speak today. Just a quick

         25  point on the process.  I don't want to throw any  --
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          2  a wrench into the process.  I'm here speaking in

          3  favor of Axis, but I do also want to  --  at the

          4  Working Families Party, we also want to do a  --

          5  point out our support as well for the Congressman's

          6  position.

          7                 My name is Bill Lipton.  I'm the

          8  Deputy Director of the Working Families Party.

          9  Working Families Party was founded eight years ago

         10  to fight for the bread and butter interests of

         11  working New Yorkers.  For us, one of the key

         12  questions to ask about any public policy is whether

         13  it preserves and creates good jobs for working

         14  families.

         15                 We believe that the City needs to

         16  make an unequivocal commitment to maintaining and

         17  expanding its industrial sector.  Too many in New

         18  York's political class believe that the future of

         19  the City's economy is in finance, insurance, and

         20  real estate.  We agree that these sectors are

         21  important, but we should also remember that New York

         22  rose to greatness as a port, as well as the world's

         23  financial capital.  An economy based on a handful of

         24  white collar industries is more vulnerable to

         25  business downturns, technological shifts, and
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          2  international competition.  These elite sectors

          3  offer no place for many of our hard- working

          4  citizens who lack a college education, except in

          5  what are all too often insecure, low- paid

          6  positions.  Both for their sake, and for the sake of

          7  a more diverse, stable, and resilient City economy,

          8  we cannot afford to let good blue collar jobs go.

          9                 Brooklyn's port facilities lack the

         10  glamour of cruise ships or the opportunity for quick

         11  riches provided by residential conversions.  But in

         12  the long run, they are key to ensuring that New York

         13  wins the competition to be the hub port for the

         14  entire East Coast, a competition over tens, if not

         15  hundreds of thousands of port- related jobs.

         16                 Which brings me to today's subject,

         17  the proposal to offer the Axis Group a 20- year

         18  lease for the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  I

         19  want to make two points about this proposal.  First,

         20  the Working Families Party salutes the efforts of

         21  the community, the Teamsters, and the Axis Group for

         22  coming to fair agreement.  To their credit, the Axis

         23  Group has sat down with groups like UPROSE and the

         24  Fifth Avenue Committee as well as labor unions like

         25  our affiliate, the IBT Joint Council Sixteen, and
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          2  developed a plan that includes good paying union

          3  jobs for local residents, as well as support for

          4  local parks.  Working families in Sunset Park need

          5  and deserve no less.

          6                 Second, I want to acknowledge the

          7  concerns of Congressman Nadler and others, that the

          8  deal as currently proposed, closes off too many

          9  long- term opportunities for port development in the

         10  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  The deal should be

         11  modified to better balance the short- term gains

         12  against the larger potential long- term gain of port

         13  development.  Sunset Park needs jobs now, and Axis

         14  will provide them.  But there is no reason that we

         15  need to close off the possibility of port

         16  development for decades into the future to get those

         17  jobs.

         18                 I don't claim to be an expert in

         19  economic development and industrial leasing, but I

         20  am confident that if there's the political will,

         21  there's a way to structure this deal so that Axis

         22  can move forward while the City and Port Authority

         23  preserve the ability to develop deep water port

         24  facilities in Sunset Park.  Perhaps the term of the

         25  lease should be shorter. Five years, with one five-
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          2  year renewal?  Perhaps only a portion of the site

          3  should be leased to Axis.

          4                 Whatever the final details, the WFP

          5  urges this Committee to support a deal with Axis,

          6  bringing the good union jobs and parks to Sunset

          7  Park, while at the same time, preserving the

          8  possibility of bringing thousands of port jobs to

          9  Brooklyn in the future.  Thank you.

         10                 MS. DE LA UZ: Chairperson Lappin,

         11  Council Member Gonzalez, and Members of the

         12  Subcommittee.  My name is Michelle de la Uz, and I'm

         13  the Executive Director of the Fifth Avenue

         14  Committee.  The Fifth Avenue Committee is a 28- year

         15  old nonprofit, comprehensive community development

         16  corporation, whose mission is to pursue social and

         17  economic justice in South Brooklyn.  We accomplish

         18  our mission through a range of programs serving low

         19  and moderate income adults, including through drop-

         20  in neighborhood employment services, a social-

         21  purpose business and sector- based workforce

         22  development training programs.  Through these

         23  workforce development programs, we have assisted

         24  more than 1,500 individuals access decent jobs with

         25  benefits.  In fact recently, with the support of New
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          2  York City's Department of Small Business Services,

          3  conducted all of the outreach and screening for the

          4  200 jobs at the Fairway Market in Red Hook,

          5  Brooklyn, ensuring that local residents directly

          6  benefitted from the new employment opportunities in

          7  their backyard.

          8                 I am here to testify in support of

          9  the City signing a maritime lease with Axis Group,

         10  for the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal, along the

         11  Sunset Park waterfront.  Axis reached out the Fifth

         12  Avenue Committee, to work with them to ensure that

         13  they meet their 100 percent local hiring goal for

         14  the 300 jobs, many of them union jobs, at the site.

         15  The lease with Axis Group will produce over 300

         16  long- term direct jobs in the next few years,

         17  including: 126 jobs in auto processing; 40 jobs in

         18  longshoremen; 40 jobs in warehousing; 60 jobs in

         19  transportation and rail transportation; and 36 jobs

         20  on site managerial and security positions.

         21                 Axis has also committed to pay for a

         22  job training program to ensure that local residents

         23  have the skills necessary to fill the positions.  In

         24  FAC's experience, a company's commitment to not just

         25  hire locally, but also to pay for a training program
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          2  to ensure that local residents can take advantage of

          3  job opportunities is rare.  Though it shouldn't be.

          4  FAC would welcome the opportunity to work with South

          5  Brooklyn community- based organizations, including

          6  SWBIDC, Opportunities for a Better Tomorrow, Center

          7  for Family Life, UPROSE, and our partners at the

          8  City Department of Small Business Services,

          9  Community Board Seven, and of course, Council Member

         10  Gonzalez as well as labor unions to ensure that Axis

         11  can design a job training program and placement

         12  program that ensures that those 300 jobs are filled

         13  by local resident from Sunset Park.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can I ask you to

         15  wrap up please?

         16                 MS. DE LA UZ: Sure.  I'll skip the

         17  piece about the hub port, which I think everyone has

         18  spoken to.  But I think it's clear that the moving

         19  forward, this lease does not preclude a hub port.

         20  This is really just step one in that plan.

         21                 Finally, I would say that the face of

         22  South Brooklyn is changing.  Many of the market

         23  pressures which have already transformed other parts

         24  of the borough are now impacting on Sunset Park and

         25  Red Hook, and threatening to displace long time
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          2  working class residents because their wages cannot

          3  keep pace with the cost of living, especially with

          4  rising rents.  The prospect of 300 living wage jobs

          5  coming to South Brooklyn over the next couple of

          6  years as a result of the lease with Axis Group, is

          7  critical to the City ensuring that New York's rich

          8  diversity is not lost.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         10                 MS. DE LA UZ: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any questions?

         12  Okay.  We're going to hear  --  there's one panel,

         13  in opposition.  So even though it's four, we're

         14  going to bring them up together.  Sandy Pope, from

         15  the Teamsters 805; Matt Yale?  Is that correct?  Red

         16  Hook Container  --  I can't read your handwriting.

         17  I'm sorry.  Red Hook Container Terminal.  Marnie

         18  McGregor, from the Pratt Center; and Carter Craft,

         19  Metro Waterfront Alliance.

         20                 And again, I'm just going to remind

         21  you that to be as brief as you can be.  Thank you.

         22                 Okay.  Would you still like to

         23  testify in support? Okay.  Please go ahead.

         24                 MR. YATES: Good morning.  Thank you

         25  Chair Lappin. My name is Matt Yates.  I'm Director
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          2  of Commercial Operations for American Stevedoring,

          3  the operator of Brooklyn's port, Red Hook Container

          4  Terminal.

          5                 I know time is brief, but first I'd

          6  like to take this opportunity to thank the Council

          7  and all Members of this Committee, and particularly

          8  the Committees on Waterfront, Economic Development,

          9  and Small Business, for their continued leadership,

         10  commitment, and energetic focus on this most

         11  important subject, New York City's port, and the

         12  essential role it plays in the local economy.

         13                 I think for far too long, the

         14  planning discussions regarding the Brooklyn

         15  waterfront have taken place against the backdrop of

         16  entrenched positions.  Questions such as, Should it

         17  be housing or Maritime?  Should we have cruise or

         18  containers?  Should it be auto or bulk?, so

         19  polarized the debate that there has previously been

         20  difficulty escaping a very binary view of obtainable

         21  goals.  Certainly, my testimony today is not

         22  intended as negative to Axis.  But rather, an effort

         23  to help the Council formulate a port framework

         24  within Axis can play a full role.

         25                 It is hard to consider the question
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          2  of port development at SBMT without first briefly

          3  looking at what we've seen at our current port in

          4  South Brooklyn.  Over the last decade or so, Red

          5  Hook Container Terminal has gone through a series of

          6  truly dramatic cycles.  Firstly, it's no

          7  exaggeration to say the facility has staged a

          8  renaissance since 1993.  Having taken the facility

          9  from a near idle model to a record high of 150,000

         10  container moves or so in 2003.  Secured a position

         11  as the premier U.S. Cocoa port.  And developed niche

         12  markets for sugar, lumber, and for project cargoes

         13  used in the building and maintenance of our City's

         14  infrastructure and bridges without need of truck

         15  trips to New Jersey.

         16                 This pattern of evolution validated

         17  both EDC's '99 Strategic Port Plan, and the Port

         18  Authority's Harris Study, both of which arrived at

         19  the same conclusions.  South Brooklyn Marine

         20  Terminal and the Red Hook Container Terminal should

         21  be developed as strategic niche ports serving east

         22  of Hudson freight needs, retaining maritime jobs,

         23  and maximizing investments.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Could you wrap up

         25  please.
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          2                 MR. YATES: Sure.  I think just  --

          3  if I could just skip with this, that --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Your full

          5  testimony will be entered into the record, even if

          6  it's not  --  because we have a written copy.  So

          7  even if you don't read it, it will still be

          8  submitted into the record.  So if there is just one

          9  or two sentences you wanted to add in summation,

         10  that would be great.

         11                 MR. YATES: Sure.  I think probably,

         12  the most relevant thing for this Committee to

         13  consider is, what we have with the SBMT issue is

         14  part of a broader conundrum.  We have a port in Red

         15  Hook, which as we speak, is literally commerce that

         16  is struggling to get in.  Now this commerce,   --

         17  and we talk about it today in the hearing as an

         18  abstract concept, what do we really mean when we say

         19  container port?  But virtually everything that we

         20  were and use on a daily basis, gets here by ships.

         21  And the ripple effect of a mismanagement of that

         22  policy is tremendous.  We have key blue collar

         23  industrial sectors that rely every day on getting

         24  the things they need. Right now, it's only Red Hook

         25  that's open as a port. SBMT, I hope that the EDC's
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          2  plan, whether it's over two decades or three

          3  decades, goes ahead, because you have hundreds of

          4  thousands of local businesses that depend on it.

          5  And without that infrastructure, they cannot

          6  continue to employ those people.  We see lost   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  Point

          8  take.  I'm sorry.  You're going to lose all of us,

          9  because we have a stated Council Meeting that starts

         10  across the street, and that's the only reason I'm

         11  keeping people moving along.  Because we have to

         12  physically leave.  So sorry, but we have to keep

         13  moving.

         14                 MS. MCGREGOR: Good afternoon.  I'm

         15  Marnie McGregor, with the Pratt Center for Community

         16  Development.  Many of you know of the work that we

         17  do, and just wanted to reiterate our support.

         18                 We look forward to long term

         19  transportation and infrastructure investments, and

         20  future growth in an equitable and sustainable

         21  manner.

         22                 And we are here today to express our

         23  concern with the Axis lease.  We're not targeting

         24  the company.  We respect the proposal that's been

         25  made.  We think that the 300 local jobs are a good
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          2  addition to the local economy, and an

          3  environmentally friendly facility seems like a good

          4  proposal.

          5                 However, we do have a concern, as has

          6  been expressed, with the length of the lease.  And

          7  in particular, we, as others have stated, would like

          8  to see a shorter- term lease, with possibly a five-

          9  year term, and a five- year renewal.  And we'd like

         10  to see the renewal contingent upon some of these

         11  proposals that have been made with respect to local

         12  hiring, and particularly, a container break bulk

         13  facility in the future.

         14                 And what we'd like to see here, and

         15  we've expressed, in support of Congressman Nadler's

         16  concern that the proposal will, in fact, potentially

         17  not be flexible for long- term container use, and we

         18  think it's short- sighted for the City not to

         19  identify appropriate container port sites that

         20  maximize the use of marine facilities over the long

         21  term.

         22                 And New Jersey, as we know, has seen

         23  all sorts of development, and is reaping the

         24  benefits of this, and we think that New York is

         25  losing out on these opportunities.
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          2                 And if in fact, the 1999 Strategic

          3  Plan is something that the City did not think is

          4  important, we'd like to see a full analysis of this,

          5  justifying why that's not the case.

          6                 And we've heard a lot to do with the

          7  City's proposal for a long- term infrastructure

          8  plan, including transportation investments, but that

          9  has not yet been released, and we'd like to see that

         10  as soon as possible.

         11                 So we'd like to see, in the end, a

         12  long- term vision for New York City that

         13  comprehensively addresses goods movement in the East

         14  of Hudson region, and promotes economic development.

         15    And we hope that the Council will take leadership

         16  on this issue.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. CRAFT: Good afternoon.  My name

         18  is Carter Craft. I'm Director of the Metropolitan

         19  Waterfront Alliance, a coalition of mostly

         20  community- based groups concerned about the future

         21  of the waterfront.

         22                 I handed out a score card, because

         23  we'd like to take the big picture approach to the

         24  waterfront, and see that environment, labor,

         25  transportation, economic development sort of all
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          2  matter.  On page two, you'll see there's a section

          3  called, "Beyond the Site", and that's what we really

          4  think matters when it comes to waterfront

          5  redevelopment, because you can't just look at the

          6  parcel in isolation.

          7                 We've heard the Congressman and

          8  others mention that New York City lacks a freight

          9  plan.  And you know, while that may not be a very

         10  catchy phrase, it is so vivid in all of our

         11  communities today, as asthma rates and

         12  hospitalization rates go through the roof on days

         13  like today, due to the poor air quality. We have

         14  troops dying overseas due to our highway and truck

         15  dependence.  And that is all absent a freight plan

         16  in New York City, the largest consumer market on the

         17  East Coast.  Couldn't we turn that around if we had

         18  a more thoughtful approach to land use and

         19  transportation?

         20                 Earlier this year, the City approved

         21  a network of industrial manufacturing business

         22  zones, which we largely supported, except we had to

         23  point out to them that their conversations were not

         24  connected with the City Department of

         25  Transportation's review of truck routes.  Would it
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          2  make sense to let your truck routes define your

          3  industrial and manufacturing business zones, or at

          4  least let your manufacturing business zones be sort

          5  of guided and steered by where your steering trucks?

          6

          7                 The City's approach to the waterfront

          8  right now is let the revenue projections define the

          9  program, and that is totally backwards.  What we

         10  need is a program, and a vision for the waterfront,

         11  and then see what money that we can get back out of

         12  it. You know, we have public hospitals, we have

         13  public schools, we have public transit.  We should

         14  have a public waterfront.  We shouldn't put the

         15  dollar signs at the beginning of the equation.

         16                 One point which hasn't been made, and

         17  I'll use it in my last 23 seconds is that you know,

         18  there's a parallel opportunity and a parallel

         19  obstacle right here that needs to be looked at in

         20  light of this lease.  We all support waterfront

         21  revitalization.  We all support maritime port

         22  development.  But the Gowanus Expressway is this big

         23  question mark that has been looming over South

         24  Brooklyn for 20 years, and later this Fall, the

         25  preferred alternative for that reconstruction of
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          2  that facility, whether it's a tunnel or whether it's

          3  an elevated, is coming, and we need to look at this

          4  parcel in light of that timetable.   Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Yes, we're going to do two groups of

          9  four to conclude.  Jae Watkins, from UPROSE; Stewart

         10  Mann, from Dealer Storage Corporation; David

         11  Kallick, from Fiscal Policy Institute; and Ken

         12  Adams, from the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce.  Who

         13  are all in favor.

         14                 MS. WATKINS: Good afternoon.  I'm Jae

         15  Watkins.  I'm the Environmental Justice Programs

         16  Coordinator for UPROSE.  I'm going to give a

         17  paraphrase of the testimony that I've prepared.

         18                 UPROSE is an inter- generational

         19  community- based organization dedicated to the

         20  development of Southwest Brooklyn, and the

         21  empowerment of our community, primarily through

         22  broad and converging environmental, sustainable

         23  development, and youth justice campaigns.

         24                 Sunset Park is working class Latino,

         25  Asian, Arab, and African- American neighborhood in
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          2  Southwest Brooklyn, that is centered primarily on

          3  two and a half miles of waterfront, stretching from

          4  15th to 65th Streets.  We were traditionally known

          5  as a bustling port, maritime commerce and industrial

          6  development. More recently, however, local residents

          7  have had to contend with increased air pollution and

          8  microtoxins generated by multiple noxious facilities

          9  sited on the waterfront within the last two decades.

         10                 Our work at UPROSE focuses on ways to

         11  rectify the environmentally destructive development

         12  model that has been imposed on the neighborhood by

         13  poor and inequitable planning practices.  An

         14  extremely integral part of the work of environmental

         15  justice is ensuring that communities are able to

         16  live and work in a safe environment, and avoid the

         17  constant dilemma of jobs versus the environment.

         18                 We are here today to state that our

         19  organization will only support development that is

         20  environmentally and economically just.  First, it is

         21  important that the revitalization of the Sunset Park

         22  waterfront, that there is an interim maritime use of

         23  the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  The community

         24  supports industrial use in the area, and we applaud

         25  the New York City EDC for understanding the
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          2  community needs of employment and viable industry in

          3  this area.

          4                 We understand concerns about length

          5  of the lease being offered for space.  However, we

          6  feel that if there's no other action that is

          7  realistic and viable, the lease could be negotiated

          8  into a shorter term.  Understanding the long- term

          9  goals of the space, including the construction of

         10  accessible rail facilities, a 20- year term may be a

         11  realistic alternative for interim use.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Ms. Watkins, can

         13  I ask you to wrap up please?  And we have your

         14  written testimony.

         15                 MS. WATKINS: Sure.  Our main issues

         16  are about the real numbers.  We've heard estimates

         17  between 20 to 380.  We want to be ensured that the

         18  numbers that are being given are actual numbers.  We

         19  have talked to both sides of this argument.  But our

         20  concern is that the community is not misled.

         21                 We also want to make sure that any

         22  practices at the facility will be environmentally

         23  conscious.  We want green building.  We want to have

         24  zero emission vehicles with access already agreed

         25  to.
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          2                 And our last concern is generally

          3  that the community is considered in any

          4  organizational facility at SBMT and Axis has already

          5  shown us that they are committed to the community

          6  with their maintenance of the park and things like

          7  that.  So even if they are permitted, we want to

          8  make sure that any organization that comes into SBMT

          9  equally values the community.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think Council

         11  Member Gonzalez has stated on the record already

         12  today her concern in terms of the environment, and

         13  in terms of making sure that the jobs materialize.

         14  And she'll keep working on that front.  I'm sure and

         15  confident.

         16                 MR. MANN: Hello.  I am Stewart Mann,

         17  and CEO of Dealer Storage Corporation.  Dealer has

         18  been in the automobile storage business for 21 years

         19  in Red Hook, and in Sunset Park.  I am a current

         20  tenant at the site, and I support the Axis project.

         21                 My business at times has been

         22  characterized as a parking lot.  It is in fact, a

         23  dynamic enterprise that employs approximately 50

         24  hard working people from Brooklyn.

         25                 Currently, 40,000 vehicles go through
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          2  Dealer Storage each year.

          3                 Dealer Storage Corporation is a

          4  company involved in the storage of newly

          5  manufactured automobiles.  And Dealer Storage's

          6  function is to store automobiles for New York City

          7  dealers who are required to maintain manufacture-

          8  required levels of inventory.  We approximately

          9  service 60 New York City dealerships and

         10  manufacturers.  These cars come from us from many

         11  states as well as Canada, Korea, and Japan.

         12                 In the absence of such a facility

         13  locally, dealers would be forced to use storage and

         14  preparation facilities outside the City.  This would

         15  raise their costs, and the selling prices of cars,

         16  thereby putting them at a competitive disadvantage

         17  with suburban dealers.  The net effect would be loss

         18  of sales to dealers outside the City.  The City

         19  would stand to lose sales taxes, business taxes, and

         20  jobs as a result.

         21                 The shipping of automobiles by water

         22  into New York City ports has thus far eluded the

         23  City despite it's capability to receive new

         24  automobiles from manufacturers.  Automobiles are

         25  currently shipped into ports in New Jersey and then
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          2  transported by road to dealers.  However, Dealer

          3  Storage and Axis propose to utilize the waterfront

          4  piers in the future as a terminal for marine

          5  shipment of automobiles.  This also is consistent

          6  with the Strategic Plan that has been mentioned

          7  today.

          8                 Dealer Storage has been part of the

          9  automobile vision for an auto port since it was

         10  originally conceived.  We will enter into a business

         11  relationship with Axis if approved.

         12                 The reopening of SBMT is a big deal

         13  for the Brooklyn waterfront.  As Chairman of

         14  Southwest Brooklyn IDC, I speak to you also in favor

         15  of this project.  I am passionate at the prospect of

         16  increased employment, and the increasing visibility

         17  of Sunset Park.

         18                 We are advocates for 2,500 businesses

         19  in Red Hook, Sunset Park, and Gowanus.  We see this

         20  project as a vision for the future.  We see an

         21  economic engine that will provide hundreds of jobs.

         22  We see the future success of existing businesses in

         23  the fostering development of new businesses.

         24                 This is not a parking lot.  It is the

         25  automotive industry in New York, which extends well
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          2  past Brooklyn's borders. A vote for this project is

          3  a vote for jobs and a vision we can all be proud and

          4  part of.

          5                 MS. THEODORE: Good afternoon Madam

          6  Chair.  My name is Leticia Theodore, and I'm here on

          7  behalf of Kenneth Adams, the President of the

          8  Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce.  I'm going to be

          9  reading his statement.

         10                 The Brooklyn recommends that you

         11  approve the proposal submitted by Axis Group for use

         12  of the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal as an auto

         13  terminal.  At the leading economic development

         14  organization in our borough, the Brooklyn Chamber

         15  advocates for new private sector investment in

         16  Brooklyn, to create new jobs for local residents,

         17  and to stimulate new business activity for Brooklyn

         18  businesses.  Especially small businesses as they are

         19  the foundation of our private sector economy.

         20                 With a dramatic transformation of the

         21  Brooklyn post industrial waterfront underway, from

         22  its northern edge at Newtown Creek to the Brooklyn

         23  Army Terminal, to a variety of new waterfront uses,

         24  from housing to parks to new commercial uses, it is

         25  imperative that we retain appropriate sites for job
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          2  generating and industrial uses.  There are still

          3  sections of the Brooklyn waterfront that endure as

          4  safe havens for industry.  For important business

          5  activity that would not be welcome in other Brooklyn

          6  locations.

          7                 SBMT is one such location.  The South

          8  Brooklyn Marine Terminal is vital to the economic

          9  development of the Brooklyn waterfront.  The

         10  proposal by Axis Group to lease the facility for its

         11  car processing and distribution operation, and to

         12  accommodate other break bulk cargo operations, in

         13  our view, meets the demands for an appropriate,

         14  private sector industrial tenant at the site.

         15                 To realize the benefits outlined in

         16  this proposal, it is important to honor all aspects

         17  of the plan, including the length of the lease,

         18  which is critical to the success of this project.

         19  The Axis Group has committed to meeting a minimum

         20  vessel threshold over the life of the lease, with

         21  regular monitoring by the City.  The proposal

         22  provides an economic boost for the South Brooklyn

         23  Marine Terminal, and an estimated 300 jobs.  Most of

         24  which will be for workers from the surrounding

         25  community.
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          2                 The recommendations of the 1999

          3  Strategic Port Plan, and the 2005 Comprehensive Port

          4  Improvement Plan support Axis proposals  Those

          5  reports recommended an auto terminal, because the

          6  site has accommodated new autos for years, and it

          7  also allows for easy conversion.  The reports also

          8  recommend a use that will generate the Most direct

          9  jobs, and require a limited capital investment.

         10  This plan meets those recommendations.

         11                 This lease comes up for review after

         12  20 years. Clearly, the City will retain its rights

         13  to --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm going to have

         15  to ask you to wrap up.  Usually we actually don't

         16  allow people to read other people's testimony into

         17  the record, but I wanted to allow you to do that.

         18  But I'm going to have to ask you to wrap up.

         19                 MS. THEODORE: That's fine.  He was

         20  here, but he had to leave because of the late start.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I understand.

         22  That happens sometimes, but  --

         23                 MR. KALLICK: I'm David Dyssegaard

         24  Kallick, from the Fiscal Policy Institute.  Fiscal

         25  Policy Institute is a nonpartisan research and
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          2  educational organization that focuses on a broad

          3  range of tax, budget, and economic issues for the

          4  State of New York and for the City.

          5                 And important part of the City's

          6  economic future is the possibility of building a

          7  cross- harbor freight tunnel, which would allow

          8  Brooklyn to become a key container port for the

          9  region.

         10                 Building a tunnel would then

         11  necessitate building a container port in Brooklyn,

         12  and the site at Sunset Park is one of the most

         13  likely locations.

         14                 That future, however, is some years

         15  off, and a number of pieces have to fall in place in

         16  order for that to happen.

         17                 As an interim measure, the Axis

         18  project before you involves a lease that would

         19  guarantee a maritime for the site and would create

         20  good jobs for New Yorkers at the same time.

         21                 The proposal represents a maritime

         22  use of the waterfront, with high- quality jobs for

         23  workers.  This is a great way to keep the waterfront

         24  open and active for any number of possible future

         25  uses.
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          2                 While the question of the rail link

          3  is decided, the City should consider a lease that's

          4  long enough to make it worthwhile to build the Axis

          5  facility, but that's short enough to keep its

          6  options open for future development.

          7                 It sounds like this is a deal that

          8  can be quickly brought to a close to the

          9  satisfaction of the private interests, the City

         10  workers, and the community.  We urge you to make

         11  sure that happens in a way that works for everybody.

         12    Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  Last

         14  panel.  Sandy Pope, Teamsters; Phaedra Thomas,

         15  Southwest Brooklyn IDC; Eric Spruell, representing

         16  Councilwoman Leticia James.  Okay.  And Bettina

         17  Damiani, from Good Jobs New York.

         18                 Please proceed.

         19                 MS. POPE: I'm Sandy Pope.  I'm

         20  President of Teamsters Local 805 in Long Island

         21  City, Queens.  I've represented the workers at the

         22  American Warehousing that are currently on Pier Five

         23  for the last year and a half.  And for the last six

         24  months, have been working on trying to save these

         25  jobs.  And so I support the Axis project.  I always
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          2  support good new jobs.  I like it a lot better than

          3  those part- time cruise jobs.  So I don't want

          4  anybody to think I'm against this.

          5                 However, I do want to remind people

          6  that there are good old jobs in this area that are

          7  threatened.  And unfortunately, the EDC doesn't feel

          8  any obligation to make sure that these jobs are

          9  preserved, or that if they can't be preserved, that

         10  these people can find work in these new jobs that

         11  are being created. We've basically been given names

         12  of companies, and why don't you go have your guys

         13  apply then.

         14                 Now some of these people have been

         15  working unloading the bulk ships for the last 15

         16  years.  They made good salaries. They have full

         17  benefits and pension.  And they rely on these jobs.

         18  So there are other businesses there that are being

         19  displaced this very minute.  They've received

         20  eviction notices up in Pier One through Five for the

         21  park and for other things.

         22                 And so I just want to point out that

         23  this is part of a bigger picture that really needs

         24  to be looked at.  We can't squeeze out, as

         25  Congressman Nadler and other people said, you can't,
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          2  you know, create something here if it means that

          3  it's going to screw up something else in this plan.

          4                 And part of what I'm seeing getting

          5  screwed up is the existing businesses are being left

          6  hanging to dry in this whole thing.  And a working

          7  port.  Not just containers, but bulk.  And I can't

          8   --  you know, don't forget, there's more people

          9  moving into New York City and into Long Island, not

         10  less.  And we need to have this as part of a plan.

         11                 So what I ask you to do is use your

         12  leverage.  I was at a community board meeting.  They

         13  get to say things, and people might listen, or they

         14  might not.  You actually have some power, where many

         15  of us don't.  So I'm asking that you use your

         16  leverage, and use your power to make sure that the

         17  EDC has a commitment to look at the whole picture

         18  and maintain the existing businesses and jobs as

         19  best they can, or find another place for them.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 MS. THOMAS: Good afternoon.  Phaedra

         22  Thomas, Executive Director of the Southwest Brooklyn

         23  Industrial Development Corporation.  Thank you

         24  Council Members Lappin and Gonzalez, and Members of

         25  the Committee.  My testimony has been submitted, and
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          2  I just wanted to go through a little bit verbally.

          3                 We represent well over 2,000

          4  companies, employing over 30,000 people in Sunset

          5  Park, Red Hook, and Gowanus.  We service about 500

          6  of those companies each year, and place

          7  approximately 100 local residents in local jobs

          8  every year.

          9                 We often have to turn down people

         10  that come to our doors.   Sunset Park residents that

         11  are looking for jobs.  And this proposal is long

         12  overdue.  The community has wanted it for four and

         13  five years now.  Axis has worked with our

         14  organization and the community board, and they've

         15  mentioned their other partnerships.               And

         16  the Sunset Park community supports this.  And if I

         17  can have you go away with anything here, from an

         18  economic development perspective, this type of

         19  investment, this major investment that will not only

         20  create these 300 jobs, but we're going to get

         21  subcontracting opportunities for our other small

         22  businesses.  The companies that they mentioned are

         23  going to create other ancillary jobs.  This major,

         24  major investment has to have a long- term lease.

         25                 We're in support of the container

                                                            130

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  terminal.  We are in support of the long- term port

          3  vision.  But anything less than 20- year lease  --

          4  and this is off the cuff.  This is not written. But

          5  I've heard here today that a five- year lease  --

          6  it's just not doable.  What we need you to do is get

          7  it done.  And we need you to work together with EDC

          8  to make this happen.  Now.  Because we've been

          9  waiting so long.  Thank you so much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I've seen

         11  Greg O'Connell speak and he talks very eloquently

         12  about your mission.  So thank you so much.

         13                 MR. SPRUELL: Good afternoon

         14  Chairwoman Lappin and Members of the Landmark,

         15  Public Siting, and Maritime Uses Committee.  My name

         16  is Eric Spruell.  And I'm here testifying on behalf

         17  of Council Member Leticia James, who due to a

         18  conflict, couldn't be here in person today for this

         19  important hearing.

         20                 First of all, the Council Member

         21  wants to acknowledge the hard work of her colleague,

         22  Councilwoman Sara Gonzalez in pushing for the best

         23  possible agreement for the use of the South Brooklyn

         24  Marine Terminal.  Councilwoman Gonzalez has been a

         25  great advocate for Sunset Park and for the Brooklyn
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          2  waterfront, and this community should be proud to

          3  have her representing them.

          4                 Council Member James actively

          5  supports Axis bid to play an important role in the

          6  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal.  The company has

          7  negotiated in good faith with community groups and

          8  with labor, and has committed to some 300 good

          9  paying union jobs for community residents.  The

         10  Council Member, along with many of her colleagues

         11  who represent largely working class districts, knows

         12  how crucial these good jobs are to the communities.

         13  As a member of the Brooklyn delegation, Council

         14  Member James wants to make sure that this important

         15  deal is struck in such a way that it does not impede

         16  New York's development as an international container

         17  port, and a commercial hub.  A development which

         18  would mean thousands of jobs, and significantly

         19  diversify our economy.

         20                 Council Member James recommends that

         21  EDC withdraws its version of the Axis Group lease,

         22  and come back with one in keeping with the language

         23  that was widely agreed upon by the City, elected

         24  officials, and community groups, and the EDC

         25  Strategic Plan of 1999.
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          2                 Let us be clear, the people of Sunset

          3  Park need the Axis deal.  The people of Brooklyn

          4  need assurances that deal in no way preempts the

          5  development of a container port.  Working together,

          6  I know that we can balance these short- term and

          7  long- term needs.  Thank you very much.

          8                 MS. DAMIANI: Hi.  My name is Bettina

          9  Damiani, I'm Director of Good Jobs New York.  We're

         10  a corporate government accountability organization

         11  that keeps track of large subsidized projects in the

         12  City.

         13                 We applaud the City's commitment to

         14  maintaining the industrial character of this stretch

         15  of waterfront, and for selecting a tenant committed

         16  to creating good union jobs and hiring local

         17  workers.  As reported earlier, the City is providing

         18  approximately $24 million for capital

         19  infrastructural improvements for this project.  In

         20  light of this public subsidy, it's imperative that

         21  these job commitments, which we're very encouraged

         22  to hear about, but they need to be made in writing.

         23  And call backs, which is a money- back guarantee,

         24  have to be incorporated into the deal. The New York

         25  City Industrial Development agency, which is a
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          2  subsidiary of the EDC, and is the agency's sort of

          3  watch dog, under Mayor Bloomberg, has greatly

          4  improved call back provisions under corporate deals,

          5  and we are hopeful and encouraged similar efforts be

          6  made in this project as well.

          7                 There's a consensus between local

          8  residents, labor, and public officials that the

          9  long- term goal of developing a container port at

         10  the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal would be an

         11  economic boost to the EDC.  But this won't be

         12  accomplished without careful and strategic planning,

         13  which Marnie McGregor, discussed from Pratt very

         14  eloquently earlier today, if the plan to bring

         15  17,000 jobs ultimately will happen.

         16                 While the Axis project may function

         17  well as an initial step towards a more ambitious

         18  plan, it's important to carefully consider whether a

         19  20 or 30- year lease might interfere with the effort

         20  the City has already undertaken to ensure the Port

         21  of New York maintains its importance on the Eastern

         22  Seaboard of the United States.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         24  much.  Anyone else here to testify?  Seeing nobody

         25  else, this hearing is adjourned.  We're going to  --

                                                            134

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2    I want to thank everybody for participating, and I

          3  thank  --  there has been some consensus building

          4  around this issue.  I want to recess this meeting

          5  until Wednesday, June 28th, at 10:30 in the morning.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 (The following written testimony was

          8  submitted for the record.)

          9

         10

         11                 Written testimony of:

         12                 Matthew Yates

         13                 Director of Commercial Operations,

         14  ASI-Red Hook Container Terminal

         15

         16            Good Morning. Thank you, Chair Lappin. My

         17  name is Matt Yates. I am Director of Commercial

         18  Operations for American Stevedoring, the operator of

         19  Brooklyn's port; Red Hook Container Terminal.

         20                 Firstly, I would like to take this

         21  opportunity to thank the council, and all members of

         22  this committee, and the committees on Waterfronts,

         23  Economic Development and Small Business for their

         24  continued leadership, commitment and energetic focus

         25  on this most important of subjects- New York City's
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          2  Port and the essential role it plays in the local

          3  economy together with the valuable industrial sector

          4  jobs it provides.

          5                 For far too long, planning

          6  discussions regarding the Brooklyn Waterfront have

          7  taken place against a back- drop of entrenched

          8  positions; questions such as should it be housing or

          9  maritime, should we have cruise or containers,

         10  should it be autos or bulk have so polarized the

         11  debate that there has previously been difficulty

         12  escaping a very binary view of obtaining goals.

         13  Certainly, my testimony today is not intended as

         14  negative to AXIS, but rather an effort to help the

         15  Council formulate a port framework within which AXIS

         16  can play a full role. It is my hope that today's

         17  hearing will perhaps allow for a broadening of the

         18  picture such that a clearer insight may be had into

         19  the current port development scenarios in Brooklyn

         20  and the City as a whole, the direction we wish to

         21  head in, and how through thoughtful policies we

         22  might get there. Indeed, owing to a confluence of

         23  significant events, this current era of port

         24  development is ripe for a comprehensive maritime

         25  plan binding many valid visions of Brooklyn's
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          2  valuable waterfront.

          3                 It is hard to consider the question

          4  of port development at SBMT without first briefly

          5  looking at what we have seen at our current port in

          6  South Brooklyn. Over the last decade or so Red Hook

          7  Container terminal has gone through a series of

          8  truly dramatic cycles. Firstly, it is no

          9  exaggeration to say that the facility has staged a

         10  renaissance since 1993 when ASI embarked on its

         11  operation of the vacant terminal. Having taken the

         12  facility from a near idle model to a record high of

         13  150,000 containers moves or so in 2003, secured its

         14  position as the premier U.S. Cocoa port; developed

         15  new niche markets such as lumber and sugar; and

         16  opened a gateway for project cargoes for use in the

         17  building and maintenance of our City's

         18  infrastructure and bridges without the need of truck

         19  trips from New Jersey, we have always sought to be a

         20  conscientious and diligent steward of the facility.

         21  This pattern of evolution validated both the EDC's

         22  1999 Strategic Port Plan and the Port Authority's

         23  Harris Study, both of which arrived at the same

         24  conclusion; SBMT and Red Hook Container Terminal

         25  should be developed as strategic niche ports;
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          2  serving East of Hudson freight needs, retaining

          3  maritime jobs, and maximizing investments. Indeed,

          4  at Council hearings on this subject in 2002, EDC

          5  testified that Red Hook Container Terminal was the

          6  most efficient in the Port of New York and New

          7  Jersey system.

          8                 Well Madam Chair and honorable

          9  members, I am pleased to report that Brooklyn's

         10  homeport is again poised to capitalize on some very

         11  exciting economic development opportunities. The

         12  national steamship line of Israel, ZIM, has just

         13  contracted with ASI to bring their ships to Brooklyn

         14  so that they may discharge East of Hudson cargo the

         15   "right" side of our bridge crossings. In fact, the

         16  first vessel on this service is being discharged by

         17  hundreds of longshoremen just across the water as we

         18  speak. Just this project alone will amount to over

         19  $1 billion in cargo activity; the addition of 150

         20  jobs to our current labor force of 623 people;

         21  nearly 126,000 trucks per year removed from our

         22  bridges and traffic challenged communities, and

         23  savings in the tens of millions of dollars to small

         24  and medium sized businesses that are the life blood

         25  of the blue collar segment of our economy.
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          2  Additionally, a major European carrier is now ready

          3  to contract with Brooklyn to utilize the container

          4  port for five years as an East of Hudson hub. It is

          5  our hope that with your help we will be able to

          6  successfully incubate this valuable project such

          7  that the city may reap the many hundreds of jobs and

          8  substantial tax dollars it will generate. Simply

          9  stated, by merely signaling to international

         10  shipping lines that New York City is committed to

         11  active maritime operations Red Hook and South

         12  Brooklyn, we will be able to capitalize on their

         13  recognition that a direct import cargo into NYC with

         14  a Brooklyn Bill of Lading truly makes good economic

         15  sense.

         16                 Operated by American Stevedoring, the

         17  trans- Hudson barge service, which is NYC's only way

         18  of transporting cargo across the Hudson without need

         19  of truck, has now fully transitioned to a model

         20  funded purely by private sector and non Port

         21  Authority dollars. It is with great pride we tell

         22  you that the many years of funding both ASI and Port

         23  Authority have invested in the service have allowed

         24  it to mature into the environmentally sound, self

         25  sustaining and indispensable service it now is.
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          2                 One might, listening to my testimony

          3  this morning, be struck with the impression that all

          4  is entirely fine and well with the working

          5  waterfront in Brooklyn. Well, as one might find with

          6  any policy question in New York City, the Brooklyn

          7  Piers have had their share of commotion over the

          8  last several years. In 2003/2003, prior to the

          9  difficulties surrounding the recent lease renewal

         10  for RHCT (Red Hook Container Terminal), due to

         11  uncertain plans for EDC and PA, the port's container

         12  volume was, was I said earlier, approximately

         13  150,000 containers; with the companies' direct

         14  employment numbers accounting for nearly 700 full

         15  time positions- comprising not only longshoremen,

         16  but also many diverse jobs such as lashers,

         17  warehouse workers, tallymen, truck drivers,

         18  administration and skilled maintenance staff. Due to

         19  perceived uncertainties by shipping lines

         20  surrounding continued cargo port operations in

         21  Brooklyn, the container volume fell in 2004/2005 to

         22  approximately 60,000 containers per year and there

         23  has been a net loss of nearly 100 full time

         24  positions. Indeed, things became so difficult that

         25  ASI was forced to seriously consider the State of
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          2  Virginia's offer to relocate our operation. Thanks

          3  to the leadership of many of our elected officials

          4  and civic institutions we resolved to continue with

          5  port operations in New York.

          6                 On December 15th, 2004, ASI vacated

          7  Pier 11 based on EDC's stated need to use the pier

          8  for Cruise operations. To be truthful, the

          9  transition to a smaller footprint has not been

         10  without challenge. Owing to space constraints with

         11  lumber, cocoa and other commodities, we have been

         12  required to turn away ships which we would otherwise

         13  have been delighted to receive. Ironically, the

         14  current EDC plan no longer calls for Pier 11 to be

         15  used for cruise ships, but instead contemplates a

         16  yacht marina adjoining a contentious planned

         17  development for luxury housing.

         18                 Without debating the merits of these

         19  competing visions here, one thing is certain; we are

         20  rapidly running out of deep- water piers that can

         21  support our essential cargo needs. Perhaps there are

         22  those who might think; well why do we even need to

         23  worry about keeping a port open anyway?

         24                 Firstly, the vast consumer demand in

         25  the NYC and Greater Long island Region has created a
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          2  recognized need for port facilities and a first

          3  class supply chain infrastructure. As congestion

          4  increased, the direct water import of our essential

          5  goods will become more critical. The social cost of

          6  truck traffic combined with skyrocketing

          7  transportation charges to our local businesses will

          8  require us to have adequate maritime assets

          9  available for development. Accordingly, we must be

         10  strategic when making siting decisions that might

         11  give rise to car storage for the next three decades

         12  on our last Brooklyn land parcel that is developable

         13  as a port.

         14                 Secondly, the world cargo market is

         15  changing. Ocean carriers now recognize their own

         16  ability to work with intermodal partners to satisfy

         17  regional cargo demands in a rationalized way, in

         18  other words, placing cargo by water where it needs

         19  to be. At a time when every city that is lucky

         20  enough to find itself on an ocean is building up its

         21  port so it doesn't get left behind by this trend, so

         22  also must NYC. The types of international co-

         23  operation, freight handling methods and technology

         24  applications which will need to be implemented

         25  require that ports be managed by experienced
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          2  terminals operators committed to appropriate

          3  investments. Given this, we believe that any

          4  property use of SBMT for car storage and transport

          5  by AXIS be under discreet agreement for only the

          6  footprint to be used and not in the form of a master

          7  lease.

          8                 Lastly, we must not forget the many

          9  detailed issues which go hand in hand with sensible

         10  port planning, and which have comprised much of the

         11  body work and study previously undertaken on this

         12  subject. For example, what about redundancy? As we

         13  know from recent events, ports in New Jersey are

         14  vulnerable to closure if there are vessel incidents

         15  in the narrow channel that is Kill van Kull. New

         16  York City's supply chain security must be based on a

         17  flow plan that is robust. What about equity in

         18  investments by the PA on both sides of the harbor?

         19  At a time when we plan to spend over $3 billion

         20  dollars on channel dredging and raising of the

         21  Bayonne Bridge to ensure that the port flourishes in

         22  New Jersey, it seems only reasonable that Brooklyn's

         23  naturally deep water harbor preserve and develop its

         24  container operations so that New York may share in

         25  the wealth that ports create.
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          2            What has made the Port of New York and New

          3  Jersey so vibrant and poised for growth is a shared

          4  commitment to provide the markets we serve with an

          5  efficient and assured gateway- from the world- and

          6  to the world. In order to keep this vital gateway

          7  operation at a would class level, it is essential

          8  that adequate land and resources be available. It is

          9  now necessary that we all redouble our efforts to

         10  develop a comprehensive port plan for Brooklyn and

         11  New York City which will fully leverage each

         12  component of our magnificent working waterfront. The

         13  benefits these cooperative efforts will yield, in

         14  human terms through job creation and environmental

         15  advances, coupled with economic stimulus to all

         16  segments of the region, make a compelling case for

         17  full and speedy adoption of an East of Hudson

         18  freight plan.

         19                 I would again like to thank the

         20  committee for holding these hearings and I look

         21  forward to working thoughtfully with all of you.

         22

         23                 Written testimony of:

         24                 Louis Pernice

         25                 President, Local 1814, International
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          2  Longshoremen's Association

          3                 I am here to express my strong

          4  support for the lease between the City and Axis

          5  Group at the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal (SBMT),

          6  39th Street Pier.

          7                 This is a time of significant change

          8  along the Brooklyn waterfront. In April, the cruise

          9  terminal at Pier 12 opened as he homeport of the

         10  Queen Mary II. Now, the City Council will be

         11  considering a long- term lease for the first major

         12  maritime use of SBMT since it ceased container

         13  operations in 1985.

         14                 The EDC's approach to developing SBMT

         15  is sound. For a modest public investment, the

         16  facility will reopen initially for regular vessel

         17  calls with ships carrying vitally needed commodities

         18  for the local market, such as lumber, plywood, and

         19  steel coil. Break bulk operations will lead in a few

         20  years to regular calls of ships carrying new

         21  automobiles that are also largely arriving in

         22  Brooklyn by truck from New Jersey. These are the

         23  right uses for SBMT- uses that can generate the

         24  maximum number of jobs with the minimum negative

         25  impact on the community from trucking.
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          2                 For Local 1814, the reopening of SBMT

          3  means not only more hours for our existing members,

          4  but approximately 120 new hires to fill the

          5  positions in the auto processing facility that Axis

          6  plans to develop at its own expense. As you know, I

          7  have publicly pledged to fully draw upon on the

          8  local community to fill these positions. I am also

          9  committing the resources of the union to train these

         10  new hires so that they will be successful new

         11  employees of Axis.

         12                 Thank you for your support of the

         13  Axis lease. Local 1814 will continue to work with

         14  your office to identify and train a new generation

         15  of longshore workers from the Sunset Park community.

         16  The Port of Brooklyn is back!

         17                 Thank you.

         18

         19                 Written testimony of:

         20                 Phaedra Thomas

         21                 Executive Director, Southwest

         22  Brooklyn Industrial Development Corporation

         23                 Good afternoon, my name is Phaedra

         24  Thomas and I am the Executive Director of the

         25  Southwest Brooklyn Industrial Development
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          2  Corporation. We represent over 2,200 business

          3  employing over 30,000 people in the Sunset Park, Red

          4  Hook and Gowanus communities of Brooklyn.

          5                 We are here to express our strong

          6  support of the Axis Group lease proposal for the

          7  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal. The Sunset Park

          8  community has waited decades for improvements and

          9  job creation at the Marine Terminal and now is the

         10  time to act.

         11                 While we appreciate concerns about

         12  the length of the Axis lease, we also know that this

         13  proposal has been in the works for YEARS.

         14                 Sunset Park has one of the highest

         15  walk- to work ratios in the City of New York; 40% of

         16  local residents find their jobs in our industrial

         17  sectors according to Census 2000. This is a working

         18  class community that deserves the kind of career

         19  development that the Union jobs of the Axis facility

         20  will provide. To stall indefinitely, the offering of

         21  jobs that pay on the average of $45,000 per year,

         22  would be a grave mistake and an injustice to our

         23  constituents.

         24                 EDC has worked successfully with both

         25  the ILA and the local residents of Red Hook in
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          2  generating employment at the Red Hook Cruise

          3  Terminal. Although the jobs are temporary, upwards

          4  of 50 Red Hook residents have been employed through

          5  the connections that EDC has made between the

          6  Corporation and community representatives. We

          7  eagerly await a continuation of this kind of

          8  partnership in Sunset Park, with permanent jobs that

          9  pay higher wages, and ask that you not have is wait

         10  any longer.

         11                 We support a Container Terminal in

         12  Sunset Park, and we believe that, as written in the

         13  Strategic Plan for the Redevelopment of the Port of

         14  New York in 1999, that this facility can be

         15  converted to such a terminal. There is a tremendous

         16  amount of work left to be done, including the

         17  development of the Terminal at 65th Street, and rail

         18  improvements that will take decades.

         19                 Necessary infrastructure at the South

         20  Brooklyn Marine Terminal is almost nonexistent.

         21  Costly repairs to the pier heads and bulkheads must

         22  be completed before any operation is to take place.

         23  This investment will spark the momentum that we are

         24  all waiting for. Once the infrastructure is there

         25  and actively begins, we can all sit back and watch
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          2  as private investment that has been waiting with

          3  baited breath, will flood onto our waterfronts

          4  again.

          5                 Every month dozens of South Brooklyn

          6  residents come to our doors in search of employment.

          7  We place as many as we can in local jobs, but we are

          8  never able to help all of them. The South Brooklyn

          9  marine Terminal will create the kind of jobs that

         10  can feed families, and our constituents deserve them

         11  now.

         12                 Axis and EDC, in this case, have done

         13  their doe diligence to meet with community

         14  stakeholders such as ourselves and the Community

         15  Board. Sunset Park supports this facility. We are

         16  the ones that will reap the economic benefits, and

         17  be affected by any traffic generated by the

         18  facility. We, as a community have analyzed this

         19  plan, and have spoken. We hope that you will respect

         20  the will of our community and Act Now to support

         21  this proposal. Thank you.

         22

         23

         24                 Written Testimony of:

         25                 Kenneth Adams
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          2                 President, Brooklyn Chamber of

          3  Commerce

          4                 Good Morning Madam Chair and Members

          5  of the Committee. My name is Kenneth Adams and I am

          6  the President of the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce.

          7                 I am here to recommend that you

          8  approve the proposal submitted by Axis Group for use

          9  of the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal as an auto

         10  terminal.

         11                 As the leading economic development

         12  organization on our borough, the Brooklyn Chamber of

         13  Commerce advocates for new private sector investment

         14  in Brooklyn to create new jobs for local residents

         15  and to stimulate new business activity for Brooklyn

         16  businesses, especially small businesses, as they are

         17  the foundation of our private sector economy.

         18                 With a dramatic transformation of the

         19  Brooklyn post industrial waterfront underway- from

         20  its northern edge at Newtown Creek o the Brooklyn

         21  Army Terminal- leading to a variety of new

         22  waterfront uses, from housing, to parks to new

         23  commercial uses, it is imperative that we retain

         24  appropriate sites for job- generating industrial

         25  uses. There are still sections of the Brooklyn
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          2  waterfront that endure as safe havens for industry-

          3  for important business activity that would not be

          4  welcome in (not could afford) other Brooklyn

          5  locations.

          6                 SBMT is one such location. The South

          7  Brooklyn Marine Terminal is vital to the economic

          8  development of the Brooklyn waterfront. The proposal

          9  by Axis Group to lease the facility for its car

         10  processing and distribution operation and to

         11  accommodate other break bulk cargo operations in our

         12  view meets the demands for an appropriate private

         13  sector industrial tenant at this site.

         14                 To realize the benefits outlined in

         15  this proposal it is important to honor all aspects

         16  of the plan, including the length of the lease,

         17  which is critical to the success of this project.

         18  The Axis Group has committed to meeting a minimum

         19  vessel threshold over the life of the lease with

         20  regular monitoring by the City. The proposal

         21  provides an economic boost for the South Brooklyn

         22  Marine Terminal and an estimated 300 jobs, most of

         23  which will be for workers from the surrounding

         24  community.

         25                 The recommendations of the 1999
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          2  Strategic Port Plan and the 2005 Comprehensive Port

          3  Improvement Plan support Axis's proposal. Those

          4  reports recommend an auto terminal because the site

          5  has accommodated new autos for years and it allows

          6  for easy conversion. The reports also recommend a

          7  use that will generate the most direct jobs and

          8  require a limited capital investment. This plan

          9  meets those recommendations.

         10                 This lease comes up for review after

         11  20 years. Clearly, the City will retain its right to

         12  reclaim the property for other uses if necessary.

         13  Using this site as an auto terminal will allow the

         14  property to be easily converted to other uses if

         15  demand and necessity dictate. The Axis Group's plan

         16  for the South Brooklyn Marine Terminal will help

         17  cement the North Atlantic's status as a hub for the

         18  region. It also means the Port of New York will

         19  retain its auto import business- not many people

         20  realize the Port brings in 700,000 autos each year.

         21                 I respectfully recommend that you

         22  approve this proposal.

         23                 Thank you for your time and

         24  attention.

         25
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          2                 Written testimony of:

          3                 Jae Watkins

          4                 Environmental Justice Programs

          5  Coordinator, UPROSE, Inc.

          6                 UPROSE is an intergenerational

          7  community- based organization dedicated to the

          8  development of Southwest Brooklyn and the

          9  empowerment of our community primarily through broad

         10  and converging environmental, sustainable

         11  development, and youth justice campaigns. Through

         12  our comprehensive and diverse programming, UPROSE

         13  aims to ensure and heighten community awareness and

         14  involvement, develop participatory community

         15  planning practices, and promote sustainable

         16  development with justice and governmental

         17  accountability.

         18                 Sunset Park is a working class

         19  Latino, Asian, Arab and African- American

         20  neighborhood in southwest Brooklyn that is centered

         21  primarily on two and one- half miles of waterfront

         22  stretching from 15th to 65th Streets. Sunset Park

         23  was traditionally known for its bustling port,

         24  maritime commerce, and industrial development. More

         25  recently, its local residents have had to contend
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          2  with increased air pollution and micro- toxins

          3  generated by multiple noxious facilities sited on

          4  the waterfront within the last two decades. These

          5  environmental burdens include the Gowanus

          6  Expressway, which 200,000 vehicles use each day, a

          7  major diesel bus depot, waste transfer stations,

          8  numerous (including several illegal) truck routes,

          9  four existing power plants, and plans for two

         10  additional power plants. As a result of this

         11  infrastructure, other industrial uses, and abandoned

         12  brownfields in the area, residents of Sunset Park

         13  have experienced a marked increase in respiratory

         14  diseases asthma, and other public health threats.

         15  Insufficient planning has compounded these health

         16  problems contributable to a severe lack of green

         17  open space (less than 1/4 acre per thousand

         18  residents), public waterfront access, recreational

         19  facilities, and youth programming in the

         20  neighborhood. Although Sunset Park has 1,100

         21  operational manufacturers, it also houses a

         22  significant number of brownfield sites representing

         23  the legacy of past manufacturers in the area. These

         24  brownfields present an opportunity for a greenway,

         25  access to the waterfront, sustainable development,
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          2  and the creation of Sunset Park as a Green Port in

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 Our work at UPROSE focuses on ways to

          5  rectify the environmentally destructive development

          6  model that has been imposed on the neighborhood by

          7  poor and inequitable planning practices. An

          8  extremely integral part of the work of environmental

          9  justice is ensuring that communities are able to

         10  live and work in a safe environment and avoid the

         11  constant dilemma of jobs versus the environment. We

         12  are here to state that our organization will only

         13  support development that is environmentally and

         14  economically just.

         15                 First, it is important for the

         16  revitalization of the Sunset Park waterfront that

         17  there is an interim maritime use of the South

         18  Brooklyn Marine Terminal. The community supports

         19  industrial use in the community and we applaud the

         20  New York City Economic Development Corporation for

         21  understanding the community needs of employment and

         22  viable industry in this area. We understand concerns

         23  about the length of the lease being offered for the

         24  space, however, we feel that if there is no other

         25  option that is realistic and viable, the lease could
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          2  be negotiated to a shorter term. However,

          3  understanding the long- term goals of the space,

          4  including the construction of accessible rail

          5  facilities, a twenty- year term may be a realistic

          6  alternative for an interim use of the space.

          7                 A critical issue in the discussion of

          8  this lease is the actual number of employees that

          9  will be needed to operate the facility once it is

         10  operational. We have heard numbers range from 20 to

         11  380, however, we want to make sure that the

         12  estimated numbers are real numbers. We also want to

         13  ensure that the hiring process will include local

         14  residents and allow for local hiring at all levels

         15  of employment, especially entry- level. We were

         16  excited that the lease for Axis included

         17  stipulations for job creation evaluations every two

         18  years and we agree that if this process is

         19  instituted it will empower the EDC to adequately

         20  measure the number of local employment

         21  opportunities.

         22                 We also want to discuss the

         23  importance of using environmental- conscience

         24  practices at any interim use of the South Brooklyn

         25  Marine Terminal. As previously discussed, the
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          2  community surrounding the terminal has been

          3  disproportionately subjugated to environmental

          4  hazards for decades and we want to ensure that all

          5  future uses of the space will parallel our ideals of

          6  a "green" port. We are concerned that any barges

          7  used by the facilities at the marine terminal will

          8  not idle and dispense large quantities of

          9  particulate matter and other pollutants into the air

         10  and water. We are also concerned about the truck

         11  traffic that will come from these facilities as they

         12  dispense their products from the warehouse to their

         13  local destinations. We encourage the corporations

         14  using the space, as well as the EDC, to use

         15  transportation companies that have sound

         16  environmental practices and work toward lowering

         17  emissions as the conduct their business. We also

         18  urge the facilities to use "green" building

         19  techniques and products in the remodeling of the

         20  South Brooklyn Marine Terminal. Axis has agreed to

         21  several environmentally sound practices including

         22  the use of zero emission vehicles on all its yard

         23  equipment, recycling wash water, and controlling

         24  100% of stormwater flows that currently enter the

         25  Gowanus Bay.
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          2                 Finally, we want to ensure that any

          3  facility that gains the lease at the South Brooklyn

          4  Marine Terminal will take proactive steps to engage

          5  the community at all levels. This begins with the

          6  hiring process and continues through the

          7  relationship that the organization develops with

          8  local community groups, other businesses in the

          9  community, and the relationship between its

         10  employees and their families. As a commitment to the

         11  Sunset Park community, Axis has agreed to commit to

         12  hiring 100% Sunset Park residents for`30 full- time

         13  positions and the lease offered to Axis will provide

         14  funding to proposed park at Bush Terminal Piers.

         15  This will provide approximately 1.5% of revenues to

         16  go toward park maintenance which will range between

         17  $50,000 per year initially and up to $200,000 by

         18  year fifteen.

         19                 Thank you for giving me the

         20  opportunity to voice the concerns of the Sunset Park

         21  community on this matter and I hope that these

         22  considerations are taken into account in the

         23  decision.

         24

         25                 Written testimony of:
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          2                 Marnie McGregor

          3                 Senior Policy Analyst, Pratt Center

          4  for Community Development

          5                 Chair Lappin and Committee Members,

          6  thank you for this opportunity to testify. My name

          7  is Marnie McGregor, and I am a Senior Policy Analyst

          8  at the Pratt Center. As many of you know, for over

          9  40 years the Center has helped communities

         10  throughout New York City to revitalize their

         11  neighborhoods, create and preserve affordable

         12  housing, build child care and community centers, and

         13  improve their environment. We also support a wide

         14  range of city wide and regional public policy

         15  initiatives and projects, including transportation

         16  and infrastructure investments that plan for future

         17  growth in an equitable and sustainable manner.

         18                 We are here today to express concern

         19  with the proposed Axis lease on the South Brooklyn

         20  Marine Terminal (SBMT), and urge City Council to

         21  reconsider the length of the lease until the

         22  Economic Development Corporation has completed a

         23  comprehensive update of the 1999 Strategic Port

         24  Plan.

         25                 As we understand the current
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          2  proposal, Axis will develop a maritime- dependent

          3  auto processing and general cargo facility on 74

          4  acres at SBMT. We agree that the public benefits of

          5  this proposal are significant for the Sunset Park

          6  neighborhood with 300 good jobs for local residents

          7  and an environmentally friendly facility, all with

          8  minimal capital investment. In fact, we don't want

          9  to target this particular company that has been

         10  acting in good faith to operate at this site.

         11                 What we take issue with however, is

         12  the proposed 20 year lease, with two five- year

         13  renewal options. Contrary to the 1999 Port Plan,

         14  this would not retain maximum flexibility for later

         15  conversion to containers, and would lock the City

         16  into a long- term lease. A Master Lease for the

         17  whole site, would be even more problematic, and

         18  would not be in the public interest.

         19                 We believe that it would make more

         20  sense at this time to have a five- year lease, with

         21  one five- year renewal- as contemplated in the 1999

         22  Port Plan- for the auto processing and general cargo

         23  facility only. In addition, we propose that this

         24  renewal be contingent upon Axis creating the

         25  promised 300 jobs, hiring them locally, and using
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          2  their site for break- bulk operations as they have

          3  proposed.

          4                 Although the 2005 Comprehensive Port

          5  Improvement Plan state that the region won't run out

          6  of container port space until 2037, it would be

          7  short- sighted for the City not to identify

          8  appropriate container port sites today, maximize the

          9  use of marine facilities and create a long- term

         10  land use and economic development plan that

         11  capitalizes upon the tremendous growth that is

         12  predicted for the region over the next twenty years.

         13  New Jersey is extremely competitive in developing

         14  container port space and is reaping all of the

         15  economic benefits of this land use- New York is

         16  losing out on this market and these benefits.

         17                 If the Economic Development

         18  Corporation now believes that 1999 Strategic Plan

         19  for the Redevelopment of the Port of New York is no

         20  longer relevant, and that the SBMT site and the

         21  Brooklyn waterfront are not appropriate for a

         22  container port facility in the long run, a thorough

         23  analysis justifying this position should be made

         24  available for public review and debate. There has

         25  been much talk about the Bloomberg Administration's

                                                            161

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  proposed long- term strategic infrastructure growth

          3  plan that includes regional transportation

          4  investments, yet details on this plan or the timing

          5  of its release have not been made available.

          6                 What we need is a long- term vision

          7  for New York City that will comprehensively address

          8  goods movement in the East of Hudson region, promote

          9  economic growth, reduce congestion and air

         10  pollution. And until such a plan exists, it is in

         11  the City's best interest to keep the options open

         12  for the SBMT site. This is the right thing to do and

         13  we hope that City Council will take leadership on

         14  this issue and reconsider the length of the Axis

         15  lease,

         16                 Thank you very much for this

         17  opportunity to comment.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 2:35 p.m.)
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